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Financial Highlight
MBERE

27.4%

Turnover increased by 27.4%
to approximately H K$1 86.7
million

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders increased by

14.1% to approximately
HK$91.4 million

2 IR B AR A AN

Gross loan receivables increased
by 54.1% to approximately
HK$1.0 billion

rEwEneEzmn54.1%=

wxmEEm27.4% =0
186,700,0007& 7T

14.1% =4

Financial Performance

Turnover increased by 27.4% to approximately HK$186.7
million

Turnover from mortgage loan receivables increased by 46.9%
to approximately HK$125.6 million

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders increased by
14.1% to approximately HK$91.4 million

Net profit margin decreased by 5.8 percentage points to 48.9%
Basic earnings per shares is HK$4.4 cents

Gross loan receivables increased by 54.1% to approximately
HK$1.0 billion

Gross mortgage loan receivables increased by 64.0% to
approximately HK$890.8 million
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Financial Highlight
MBRE

Average amount of pawn loans
granted increased by 9.6% to
approximately HK$5,700

e S8 BT I9 SRR

Total amount of new mortgage
loans granted increased by

48.2% to approximately
HK$889.9 million

P 2 i B E

Number of new mortgage loans
granted increased by 16.7%
to 251 cases

PR 2 STz iB M e E B

m9.6%=%5,700/ 8 7t  w#2nd8.2%= 1#2116.7 % =2517
4889,900,0007% T
Business performance EHKRIRA

Total amount of new pawn loans granted increased by 3.1%
to approximately HK$595.7 million

Average amount of pawn loans granted increased by 9.6% to
approximately HK$5,700

Number of new pawn loans (larger than HK$100,000) granted
increased by 8.9% to 354 case

Total amount of new mortgage loans granted increased by
48.2% to approximately HK$889.9 million

Number of new mortgage loans granted increased by 16.7%
to 251 cases

Net interest margin for pawn loan decreased by 2.6 percentage
points to 40.5%

Net interest margin for mortgage loan decreased by 2.8
percentage points to 13.1%

FRBEBZHMAEERBBEEMINEN
595,700,000/ 7T

PRt BE
5,700/ 7T

LR F & B 9.6%E 4
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFEUBHHRE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“2-X"§ C"T-hf ET-@mFE —T-=F C"T-_F
HK$E 7T HK$E T HK$ BT HK$ % TT HK$&TT
Profitability data (HK$) BRRIHE(ET)
Revenue Wz 186,657,644 146,516,719 95,815,052 71,739,895 66,360,621
— Interest earned from - BEERRN
pawn loans FE 61,876,603 57,656,085 56,822,586 56,722,057 52,350,742
— Interest earned from — RIBEFE TR
mortgage loans 28 125,595,171 85,477,569 37,450,025 7,955,494 3,192,311
~ Gain on disposal of —HELKREEL
repossessed assets W (814,130) 3,383,065 1,542,441 7,062,344 10,817,568
Operating profit T 132,026,414 107,651,845  55240,256 31,126,603 40,120,485
Profit attributable to equity R R EE S
shareholders 91,365,939 80,091,046 41,076,096 22,705,941 33,376,055
Earnings per share — basic BRREM — ZARCEIL)
(HK cents) 4.4 3.9+ 2.1% 1.2% 1.8
Profitability ratios (%) BRI (%)
Operating profit margin ISR TR 70.7 735 57.7 43.4 60.5
Net profit margin e 48.9 54.7 42.9 31.7 50.3
Effective tax rate (Note 1) BRHIR (i) 16.5 16.7 17.8 25.1 16.5
Return on total assets (Note 2) ~ AZE#%8E R (Kix2) 8.1 10.6 7.8 8.3 17.9
Return on shareholders’ equity B EEE 5 E3R (HM5E3)
(Note 3) 13.7 17.7 12.7 1.7 24.7
Net interest margin (Note 4) FRE(ME4) 17.5 18.3 23.8 34.0 37.2
— pawn loans — HBEEX 40.5 43.1 43.7 43.5 42.1
— mortgage loans — RBIEHER 13.1 15.9 13.2 12.5 12.7
Operating ratios ReE®
(as a percentage of (EEEBEE L) (%)
turnover) (%)
Staff costs BIRA 13.6 15.0 19.3 213 20.4
Rental expenses HeRAx 6.8 7.2 9.1 104 10.9
Advertising and promotions EERkEE 5.3 43 5.0 4.0 32

Note 1
Note 2
Note 3

Effective income tax rate is equal to the current tax divided by the profit before taxation for the respective year
Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the total assets as at the respective year
Return on total equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the total equity as at the respective year

Note 4 Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less our finance costs, divided by the
average of month-end gross loan receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year

* Amount for the year ended 28 February 2015, 28 February 2014, 28 February 2013 and 29 February 2012 adjusted for the bonus issued on 18 August 2015.

MiEE1  BERAEHERERNZFZ BV IRRR AR A1 A

MiaE2 BAEABERRDZFEEMNRASFEZEERRTE

M3 RREBECBRDEZFERMRASFEZ EREEAE

Miz4 FRAFESEEASEEHAEERREBEAER A BWRARRBERS - BAFAEBERZ AREKE RSB T

*HEZZT-—RAF-_A=tN\B - ZE—NMF-A=t/\B - ZE—=F-A=t+/\BR=ZZE—=—F-A=-t+NBZ2BER=-FT—RAFNA+N\BEITZ
AL T IAEE o
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFEMBEHSE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—AE —hfF —MmeE =% —T-C-F
HK$%& T HK$7E 7T HK$ BT HK$B T HK$ETT
Assets and liabilities data BEREERE(GER)
(HK$)
Non-current assets ERBEE 82,242,916 79,145,861 84,195,801 31,653,425 8,221,515
Current assets MEBEE 1,042,905,902 675,514,796 443,708,537 242,459,308 178,179,877
Current liabilities MBAE 333,588,726 227,404,555 203,464,743 80,100,690 9,145,221
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 124,966,053 75,365,297 14,836 188,384 42,311,959
Capital and reserves ié%&ﬁﬁ 666,594,039 451,890,805 324,424,759 193,823,659 134,944,212
Gross loan receivables W E T aa % 1,032,784,223 670,196,734 489,972,005 230,796,415 151,147,593
- Gross pawn loan —J'E%Zﬁﬂﬁ'.? Ptk
receivables 141,755,620 124,239,910 124,360,450 117,321,040 118,017,870
—~ Gross mortgage loan — EBUZIBIRHE
receivables ek 890,778,603 543,188,423 365,022,242 113,475,375 32,644,515
— Gross unsecured loan — EWERRER
receivables ko] 250,000 2,768,401 589,313 = 485,208
Assets and working BEREEESEE
capital data
Current ratio (Note 5) MENLL = ([43E5) 3.1 3.0 2.2 3.0 19.5
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 6) BB L %(%)(FizE6) 63.7 63.7 59.7 35.5 34.0
Net assets value per share SREEFEET)
(HKS) (Note 7) (Ft5E7) 0.03 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4
Note 5 Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as at the respective year end

Note 6

ultimate holding company and debt securities issued by total equity as at the respective year end

Note 7
B 55
Fizke
Bt 5E7

EX - BEME

BREEFEDESFRZEEFEGR AR BHTE

SAHE - EME

Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing net assets by the total number of shares as at the respective year end
MR TNREFRZADEERARDEEFE
BELRVREFRZBEEERTER

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation of bank loans, overdrafts, obligations under finance leases, other loans, loans from

REBBRARZEFRREBITEREF 2 B RAERERTE
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFEUBHHRE

Interest earned from pawn loans

HE S AR 7B
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Interest earned from mortgage loans
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Five-year Financial Summary

B ﬂi%#ﬁ%g

Net interest margin - pawn loans Net interest margin - mortgage loans
FEE-HEEX FEE-RIBEFER
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Chairman Statement

ER®mE

It gives me great pleasure to present to you the annual report of
Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited for the year ended 29
February 2016.

Pawn loan business and mortgage loan business of the Group
has continued to achieve satisfactory and healthy growth. Pawn
loan business, being a cornerstone for the Group, has continued
to generate stable interest income. Revenue from this segment
amounted to approximately HK$61.1 million. Mortgage loan business
has maintained its rapid growth with interest income increased by
46.8% to approximately HK$125.6 million.

The past year has been a year of challenges and opportunities. With
a weak retail sales performance and consolidating property market,
enterprises need to carefully plan their strategies in order to grasp
every opportunity. During the past financial year, we continue to
expand in a cautious and prudent manner. We put our focus on
high net worth customers, and granted syndicated loans with other
money lenders. On 24 September 2015, the Group had entered
into a memorandum of understanding with CITIC Capital Finance
(Cayman) Limited (“CITIC Capital”).In order to broaden our income
sources and customer base, both parties intended to jointly develop
the mortgage loan business to fulfil the demand of mortgage loans
of large principal amounts.

Apart from a final dividend, the Directors also recommended a
payment of special dividend to repay our shareholders and investors
for their unfailing trust and support. On behalf of the Board, | would
also like to express my sincere gratitude to the unremitting efforts of
our management team and employees.

We will continue to seize opportunities and strive to create the best
interests for our shareholders and the Company.

Chan Kai Ho, Edward

Chairman and Executive Director,
25 May 2016

Q Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR A A

AAMAZBRBERXEEERARRAHBZ-F
—ANFZAZTHHLFENSFR -

REENHREERESMIZBRBEREREEE
REEBRERER BEEREKAAEENE
AIERHRERHEBTOMERA - 2o HKEA
#961,100,000/8 7T - IZIBE B E REB LT 2 RIG
£ HABWRAERLI6.8%FE4125,600,00087T °

EFEDNIEERBRATHN—F -  ARZTEHERE
FERREMER - PXEFEEE S HEH L
FEe—fA#e NBETRFE  RMEE/ DO
REWETER  BRANSFERTFPASEY I
HEMMEAZERERER - RZZE—HFNA
Z+HH - AEBEECITIC Capital Finance (Cayman)
Limited ([CITIC Capital|) 5] 32 sREfE 8% - BIEKX
WARBEREFER  sTHE iR EREIZBIR
HEREBURZABACHIRBERBAERZ

FK o

FRAR BB SN - BRI RIR A BB R AR E I
REREEFNEBEEERIF - RABRRES
g RUBEHEZEFLEENTWEF -

BAGEEILERS YR BBRREAREFN
RAME -

FTERNTEF
BRI =
SEE—NEE T 5 = s



Management Discussion and Analysis

www.pawnshop.com.hk

i
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“our Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “Group” or “our Group”) is a financing
service provider in Hong Kong operating under the brand name of " Oi
Wah", principally engaged in providing secured financing, including
pawn loans and mortgage loans.

MORTGAGE LOAN BUSINESS

For the year ended 29 February 2016 (“FY2016"), the mortgage loan
business has been a major source of income of the Group. During
the year, the interest income increased from approximately HK$85.5
million for the year ended 28 February 2015 (“FY2015") to HK$125.6
million in FY2016, representing an increase of 46.8%. Revenue
generated from the mortgage loan business in FY2016 accounted
for approximately 67.3% of the Group’s total revenue during the year.
The mortgage loan receivables increased from HK$543.2 million at 28
February 2015 to HK$890.8 million at 29 February 2016, representing
an increase of 64.0%. During the year, there were 251 new cases of
mortgage loan transactions while no bad debt was recorded.

Despite the uncertainties of the local economy and property market,
our Group observed that the demand for mortgage loan is still
robust. During the year, our mortgage loan business has maintained
a steady growth with fair asset quality. The Group will continue to
implement a prudent strategy, to maintain its focus on high net worth
customers and remain cautious when granting mortgage loans. In
order to broaden our income sources and customer base, the Group
will continue to partner with other money lenders to grant syndicated
mortgage loans of large principal amounts.

BEEENWE DN

E 3 El)
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AICERARBGBI ASE ) RAIBE | miEATHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWwR D

PAWN LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2016, the revenue from the pawn loan business slightly
increased to HK$61.1 million, with the aggregate loan amount
increased by 3.1% to HK$595.7 million (FY2015: HK$578.0 million).
Average loan amount increased to approximately HK$5,700 per
transaction (FY2015: HK$5,200 per transaction).

During the year, the Group continued to channel resources to
advertising and promotion to enhance the Group’s brand awareness.
Such effort has generated demand of one-to-one pawn loan
appointment services for pawn loans that exceed HK$0.1 million.
Number of pawn loan transactions with such amount granted
increased from 325 transactions in FY2015 to 354 transactions in
FY2016.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Group is concerned with the increasing number of fraud cases
and incidents of overcharging handling fees by a number of illegal
financial agents in mortgage loan business. Criminals impersonated
staff of banks, financial institutions or the Housing Authority, and
deceived victims into paying high handling fees or consultation fees.
Such incidents are damaging to the reputation of financial institutions
and money lenders. The Group will continue to provide reliable
and legal loan services to its customers, and work closely with the
government and law-enforcement agencies to fight such crime.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

During FY2016, the Group has continued to practise its service @RZZE—XEMHREE @ AEBEREIZBIET KX

mission of “Flexible and timely; professional and reliable; customers Zé.?famﬂlﬁ‘kﬁﬁﬂiéf RTHIEE R 23
come first” to provide mortgage and pawn loan services. Despite BREPREFINRERE  c REXOZETESRK

the recent decline in retail industry and the uncertainties of the local &ZIK/% KEREMHBDRIABERE  AEEMHK
economy and property market, the Group has still recorded a growth — z5{J4%/1827 A% ML E - I BRHEBERERE -
of 27.4% in revenue, which is a proof of its stable growth in business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW 5f 75 [0l R

Revenue Wz

Our Group's revenue increased from approximately HK$146.5 AR&EBEUZH —F — 7 E 0 BEE £146,500,000
million for FY2015 to approximately HK$186.7 million for FY2016, ,%731“ MEZZT—XFEWBFE#186,700,000%
representing an increase of approximately HK$40.2 million or 27.4%. + B3 h04940,200,00087C8427.4% °

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s turnover T~ER&FPEIBEFEAEE 7 SE5EHM -
during the year under review:

For the year ended For the year ended
29 February 2016 28 February 2015
BE-S—XF HE-T—AF
—A-t+hBLEE ZAZ+NBLEEFE
% of % of
HKS$ million  Turnover HKS$ million Turnover
BEEETT £+ BEET R
Bk B2k
Turnover R
Revenue from pawn loans HEER 61.1 32.7 57.7 40.3
Revenue from mortgage loans RBERER 125.5 67.3 85.5 59.7
Total CEl 186.6 100.0 143.2 100.0

Turnover

! Revenue from Pawn loans & & X

B Revenue from Mortgages 1z 18K #f
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWwR D

The increase was attributable to an increase in our interest income
from mortgage business by approximately HK$40.1 million or 46.9%
from approximately HK$85.5 million in FY2015 to approximately
HK$125.6 million in FY2016. The increase was mainly due to the
continuous expansion of our mortgage loan portfolio in FY2016.
The total amount of new mortgage loans granted increased from
approximately HK$600.6 million in FY2015 to approximately
HK$889.9 million in FY2016 and the average loan size increased
from approximately HK$2.8 million per transaction in FY2015 to
approximately HK$3.5 million per transaction in FY2016.

Despite the weak atmosphere in the luxury goods market, our
performance in pawn loan business remained at a steady growth.
Revenue from our pawn loan business increased by approximately
HK$0.1 million or 0.2% from approximately HK$61.0 million in
FY2015 to approximately HK$61.1 million in FY2016. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in our interest income earned on our
pawn loan receivables from HK$57.6 million in FY2015 to HK$61.9
million in FY2016, offset by the decrease in revenue from disposal of
repossessed assets by approximately HK$4.2 million.

The increase in our interest income earned on our pawn loan
receivables was primarily attributable to an increase in the (i) aggregate
amount of pawn loans granted from approximately HK$578.0 million
in FY2015 to approximately HK$595.7 million in FY2016; (ii) average
amount of pawn loans granted from approximately HK$5,200 per
transaction in FY2015 to approximately HK$5,700 per transaction
in FY2016; and offset by the closure of one of our pawnshops in
December 2015.

Revenue from disposal of repossessed assets represents the net gain
or loss recorded as we sold the repossessed assets in the event of
default in repayment of our pawn loans. The decrease in our revenue
from disposal of repossessed assets in FY2016 was mainly due to (i)
10% off of the listed price of most of the branded watches during
March and April 2015; (ii) decrease in the demand on luxury goods
during the second half of 2015; and (iii) the gold price per ounce
decreased from approximately US$1,200 in March 2015 to US$1,090
in August 2015 and further decrease to US$1,050 in December
2015. Since every pawn loan has a loan term of four lunar months,
the revenue was affected by the depreciation of gold and branded
watches in FY2016 and thus impacted on our revenue from disposal
of repossessed assets recorded in FY2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other revenue

Other revenue decreased from approximately HK$10.3 million in
FY2015 to HK$4.7 million in FY2016 representing a decrease of
approximately HK$5.6 million or 54.4%, which was mainly due to
(i) the decrease in our credit-related fee income by approximately
HK$4.8 million from approximately HK$7.6 million in FY2015 to
approximately HK$2.8 million in FY2016, mainly representing early
repayment fees; and (ii) the decrease in interest earned on unsecured
loans of approximately HK$0.4 million during FY2016.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by approximately HK$9.4 million
or 19.0% from approximately HK$49.4 million in FY2015 to
approximately HK$58.8 million in FY2016.

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$3.5 million or 15.9%
from approximately HK$22.0 million in FY2015 to approximately
HK$25.5 million in FY2016. The increase was mainly attributable to
(i) an increase in salaries and other benefits of approximately HK$0.9
million which is due to the increase in salaries in September 2015; and
(ii) the increase in directors’ remuneration of approximately HK$2.4
million in FY2016.

Rental expenses increased by approximately HK$0.8 million or 7.5%
from approximately HK$10.6 million in FY2015 to HK$11.4 million in
FY2016. The increase was mainly due to the increase of monthly rent
after the renewal of rental agreements of 2 pawnshops in December
2015 and the full year effect of the renewal of rental agreements for
the head-office and 2 pawnshops in May 2014.

Excluding the staff costs and rental expenses of approximately
HK$36.9 million and HK$32.6 million in FY2016 and FY2015
respectively as mentioned above, other operating expenses increased
by approximately HK$5.1 million or 30.4% from approximately
HK$16.8 million in FY2015 to approximately HK$21.9 million in
FY2016, which was mainly due to an increase in advertising expenses
and legal and professional fees by approximately HK$3.7 million and
HK$0.9 million, respectively.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased significantly by approximately HK$11.2
million or 97.4% from approximately HK$11.5 million in FY2015 to
approximately HK$22.7 million in FY2016 after netting off with the
decrease in bank loans and overdrafts by approximately HK$49.1
million in FY2016. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
the amount of loans from the ultimate holding company, other loans
and debt securities issued in FY2016 for funding our expansion of
mortgage loan portfolios.
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Charged for impairment losses on loan receivables

Approximately HK$282,000 was credited to profit or loss for
impairment losses on loan receivables in FY2015 while approximately
HK$491,000 was charged to profit or loss in FY2016. The impairment
losses on loan receivables charged to profit or loss in FY2016 of
approximately HK$491,000 was attributable to the net effect of (i) the
subsequent reassessment on the recoverability of previously impaired
loan receivables that were individually assessed being credited to
profit or loss of approximately HK$38,000; and (ii) the impairment
losses on loan receivables that were collectively assessed being
charged to profit or loss of approximately HK$529,000. In FY2015,
the impairment losses on loan receivables credited to profit or loss
of approximately HK$282,000 was attributable to the net effect of
(i) the subsequent reassessment on the recoverability of previously
impaired loan receivables that were individually assessed being
charged to profit or loss of approximately HK$12,000; and (ii) the
impairment losses on loan receivables that were collectively assessed
being credited to profit or loss of approximately HK$294,000.

Income tax expenses

Our Group's effective tax rate was approximately 16.5% in FY2015
and FY2016. No material change was noted.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our Group's profit for FY2016 increased to approximately HK$91.4
million from approximately HK$80.1 million in FY2015, representing
an increase of approximately HK$11.3 million or 14.1%. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue by approximately
HK$40.2 million, netting off with the increase in expenses in staff
costs, rental expenses, advertising expenses and finance costs which
amounted to HK$3.5 million, HK$0.8 million, HK$3.7 million and
HK$11.2 million respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 29 February 2016, cash and cash equivalent (net of bank
overdraft) amounted to approximately HK$49.0 million, representing
a net increase of approximately HK$10.7 million as compared to the
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position as at 28 February 2015. The increase was attributable to the

following items:
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placing

Proceeds from other loans
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net of issuing expenses

(Repayment for)/proceeds from bank
loans

Increase in loans from the ultimate
holding company

Dividend paid
Finance costs paid
Other net outflow
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During FY2016, net cash outflow from operating activities of
our Group amounted to approximately HK$256.2 million. It was
mainly due to the increase in loan receivables which amounted to
approximately HK$362.6 million during the year.
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Pledge of assets

At 29 February 2016, the Group had pledged its mortgage loan
receivables with net book value of HK$252.9 million (28 February
2015: HK$138.0 million) for the purpose of obtaining facilities from
banks and an independent third party.

Contingent liabilities

There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at

BEERN

RZBE-—AR"F_AZ+NAB A£LECEBEET
F 1B /252,900,000 (2 —RAF A=+ N
A : 138,000,000/ 70 ) 2 FEBIRZIBIIBE TR - AL
BITRBYEZFBEME -

HREE

RZZE-RFZAZTAR  AEEIEBEFNEX

29 February 2016. HARE -
Key financial ratio FERKLE
As at As at
29 February 28 February
2016 2015
RZZB—RE RZZE—AF
—A=thH —AZ+NR
Current ratio'” wEp =" 3x 3x
Gearing ratio”’ fespy=? 66.9% 63.7%
For the For the
year ended year ended
29 February 28 February
2016 2015
BE Bz
=i e
—A=tHhH —AZ+NR
LEE FFE
Return on total assets BEMELR 8.1% 10.6%
Return on equity"” HERER 13.7% 17.7%
Net profit margin” =" 48.9% 54.7%
Net interest margin® Fax® 17.5% 18.3%
— pawn loan services — BEBEHRARE 40.5% 43.1%
— mortgage loan services — RIBE R ER R 13.1% 15.9%
Notes: BT
y=y

(1) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the respective year end.

(2) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings
(summation of bank loans, overdrafts, obligations under finance
leases, loans from the ultimate holding company, other loans
and debt securities issued) by total equity as at the respective
year end.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(3) Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the
year by the total assets as at the respective year end.

(4)  Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by
the total equity as at the respective year end.

(5)  Net profit margin is calculated by dividing profit for the year by
the turnover for the respective year.

(6)  Netinterest margin during the year refers to our interest income
in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less our
finance costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan
receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year.

Current ratio

Our Group's current ratio remained stable at approximately 3 times
as at 28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016, which was mainly
due to the increase in current loan receivables from approximately
HK$597.8 million as at 28 February 2015 to approximately HK$957.1
million as at 29 February 2016 or by approximately 60.1%, offset by
the increase in other loans which amounted to HK$151.8 million.

Gearing ratio

Our Group’s gearing ratio slightly increased from approximately
63.7% as at 28 February 2015 to approximately 66.9% as at 29
February 2016, which was mainly due to the increase in other loans
and debt securities issued in the amount of approximately HK$151.8
million and approximately HK$49.9 million respectively, offset by the
increase in equity due to the net proceeds from the placing of shares
of the Company which amounted to approximately HK$153.0 million
and the decrease in bank loans and overdrafts which amounted to
approximately HK$49.1 million.

Return on total assets and return on equity

Our return on total assets and return on equity slightly decreased
from approximately 10.6% and 17.7% respectively in FY2015 to
approximately 8.1% and 13.7% respectively in FY2016. The reason
for the decrease was mainly due to (i) the placing of shares of the
Company in June 2015, in which the Company obtained approximately
HK$153.0 million from the placement; and (ii) decrease in the net
interest margin from our mortgage interest income as the result of
obtaining more first mortgage into our mortgage loan portfolio in
FY2016.

EEENWRE DN

(3) BEABLNBRINBFEGEMNRUNEFRZEELR

sy
=T'H o
ufrr

(4) BEEBHBRFEHEMNEUNSFRZEREEAE -
(5) HMAXRDIREFEZFERMNGRIAEERTHE -

(6) FARZFEEEAEBEFHAZERNZBEMAE
R BBRARBERA - BAFABBEERZA
BB ESREHRERE TR -

FEILE =
R-_E—RAF_A-+NHBHEZ-ZZE—XF_A
ZHhB - AEEZRBLEEFEBEELOMG X
ERRBERERBE - E—RE_A=-+/\B%
597,800,000/ L& MN4960.1%E — T — NFE _ A
—+ A B#%957,100,000/& T FTEL + W /A E B X
H#HNEY151,800,00058 T84 ©

EELL=
AEBZEBLEH-_ZE—RE-_A-+N\BH
3.7%HEHM EFAZE T —X"FE-_A=-1+HLLAH
66.9%  NEEZHAREMERRBDEHTEBESFS
A1 1 A0 49151,800,0007%8 7T & #749,900,0007% JT AT
B WAHEEFERE AR RRD TS RIEF L
$0#7153,000,0008 LA RBITERRBE R H
49,100,000/ LA EH ©

BEEAEDRRER DR

AEEMNEEREORAEZLEHRAE-_ST—AF
B EE410.6%R17.7%D BB = ZF
—NEVREELN81%KX13.7% c BB TFEHR
WARBRZE—RAFANARERD M ARQ
A B B & B 18 49153,000,000/8 JT : K(i)AN £ &
EEMBEWAZFEERAEEZBEFE A

ER-_ZE-AFURFENFTESE R
PR

Annual Report 2016 —ZT— NEFEH @



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWwR D

Net profit margin

There was a slight decrease in our net profit margin from approximately
54.7% in FY2015 to 48.9% in FY2016. The reason for the decrease
was mainly due to (i) the increase in finance cost as a result of the
increase in other loans during FY2016, and (ii) the decrease in net
interest margin in our mortgage loan business as a result of obtaining
more first mortgage into our mortgage loan portfolio in FY2016.

Net interest margin

The net interest margin decreased from approximately 18.3% in
FY2015 to approximately 17.5% in FY2016. The decrease was due
to (i) an increase in our interest income generated by mortgage
loans in FY2016 and we generally charged our customers a relatively
lower interest rate for our mortgage loans than those for our pawn
loans. For FY2015 and FY2016, interest earned on mortgage loans
contributed approximately 59.7% and 67.0% to our total interest
income, respectively, resulted from the expansion of our mortgage
loan business during the year; and (ii) an increase in the percentage
of first mortgage in our mortgage loan portfolio in FY2016, offset
by the increase in equity funding from the placing of shares of the
Company in June 2015.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The followings are the principal risks and uncertainties identified by
the Group. These factors are not exhaustive and there may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

A =R
AEBZANEH - E-AFPRFELS4.7%E
WMTITHRE—_T—NEFUPRFE48.9% - KIFTHIEE
BHROEAR —E-"FUHRFEEMEFTIENTHE
HBERAEN : Ri)EAEERBERETES
R-ZE-RFUHBRFERBESLE - RBMERRK
BB E KRG R TRRATEL »

=

ERH_T-AFHBRFENIS3I% NKECZ
NEFHEENI75% ZBHBIIERO-Z
NFVRFEAEERAZBEBERZF B
A MAEE -BRIZBRFEERAE S KE
R EAEEA LR E ERFTWERE - AR AEE
REANBTHRBERERES  R_T—1FH
BEERZZ—R"FHREE  RIRBEHRERR
BRELZ B o alfh A& E A F 8 U AK59.7% K
67.0% : R(INVZE—"FHBFEE—ZBEREE
EZBEEERASTNE I LIEN - wAQFR
ZE-RFRARERD ZIRERE L MNATHEE o

s H
| cm c¢m

FEREBRTEEME
UTAXEBAENEIBARRTHEEY. - HTX
FFIES - REFEAEBLRAERE AT LT
SEEARTHEGEBNE AR RET Y -




Management Discussion and Analysis

Competition

The Group competes in the money lending business market with
other money lenders in Hong Kong, which may have substantially
greater financial or other resources than the Group. The Group may
also face competition from new entrants to the industry having
business objectives similar to the Group and have greater financial
resources. Should the Group fail to maintain its advantages in cost
control, customer base and quality of service, it may lose its market
share in the money lending business market.

Financial risk

Financial risk factors include credit risk, market risk and liquidity
risk. Details of the aforesaid financial risk factors and the respective
risk management measures are set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

Reputational risk

One of the keys to the Group’s success is its well-established
reputation of its brand name in the pawn loan and money lending
business market in Hong Kong. With the increasing number of fraud
cases and incidents of overcharging handling fees by a number of
illegal financial agents in mortgage loan business, the reputation
of financial institutions and money lenders are adversely affected.
Existing or potential customers may lose confidence in the Group,
or in the industry in general, and the Group’s performance may
be negatively impacted. To maintain and promote the brand and
reputation, the Group will continue to provide reliable and legal loan
services to its customers, and work closely with the government and
law-enforcement agencies to fight such crime.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

It is the policy of the Group to strive to reduce the impact on
environment in running and promoting its business activities. For
the year ended 29 February 2016, the Group had complied with the
relevant environmental laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group. In order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
and to reduce the use of papers, the Group encourages its staffs
to reduce energy consumption, reduce unnecessary printing and
photocopying, and recycle office supplies whenever possible.

The Group respects human rights and does not engage in
discrimination on the basis of sex, race, ethnicity, age or religion.
The Group adopts a non-discriminatory policy in its recruitment and
promotion of staffs, and focuses only on the applicants’ and staffs’
qualifications, experience and merits.
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The Group promotes and maintains harmony with the communities
in which it operates, and is committed to contribute towards the
society. The Group encourages its staffs to support community service
activities.

For the year ended 29 February 2016, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, the Group has complied with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains stable and good relationships with its employees
and customers. The number of employees of the Group remains fairly
constant and the turnover rate is relatively low. As at 29 February
2016, the Group had a total of 52 staffs (28 February 2015: 54). For
the year ended 29 February 2016, the Group has not encountered
any labour dispute or involved in any labour tribunal proceedings.

The Group treasures the relationship with its customers and keeps
close contacts with them to accommodate their short-term financial
needs. The Group believes that customer relationship is an integral
part of the Group’s sustainability, and stays connected with its
customers through various channels, including its website, outlets,
telephone and emails.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group expects the demand for mortgage loan
in Hong Kong to remain robust. The Group will continue to expand
its business in a cautious and prudent manner, with measures such
as increasing the proportion of first mortgage of mortgage loan
receivables. The Group will actively seek diversified financing channels
(such as issuing bonds, obtaining loans from overseas banks, etc) to
maintain abundant capital reserve, in order to fulfill customers’ needs
and expand the Group’s market share.

Regarding to the pawn loan business, the Group is of the view
that luxurious goods market has bottomed and that its pawn loan
business will remain stable. To provide more convenient services to
customers, the Group has enhanced its website in October 2015 to
provide mortgage loan application and pawn loan valuation services
to customers via mobile devices at anywhere and anytime.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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ADVANCES TO THE ENTITIES RTERZER

As disclosed in the announcements of our Company dated 5 November i A AR B A-ZT—FE+—AHA -

2015, 11 January 2016, 22 January 2016 and 17 February 2016 —X&—HA+—H —ZE—X~F—A=-+= EI&_
(the “Announcements”), Oi Wah Property Credit Limited (“Oi Wah Z—XE-A++BzZ22B(ZAm)EE K
PCL"), being an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company, A &EE2ENBARISEMEZEER R[S
as lender entered into loan agreements (the “Loan Agreements”) fEYXEZE | (EAHREA)ENLE %}E(F%T}EJ
with nine customers (the “Customers”) which are associated with &t EE - EEERA) DR —_ZE—

or connected to each other as borrowers on 5 November 2015, 9 H+—/F#fH - ; NFE—ANLH  ZE— /\i
January 2016, 22 January 2016 and 17 February 2016, respectively,. —A -+ -—HARER-_Z— "F-_A++tBHiIVEXH
Pursuant to the Loan Agreements, Oi Wah PCL agreed to grant Z([EZX &) - FE?J}?E,%}\T;?%% FEEYEEFER
mortgage loans in the aggregate amount of HK$189.5 million (the E M E&E X H 4% /4189,500,000/8 7T VIR B X
“Loans”) to the Customers. Set out below are the principal terms of (F‘)*,TAJ) TYXEHIWNSERRHE T FTEIER :

each of the Loan Agreements:

Loan Agreement|  Loan Agreement |l Loan Agreement [l Loan Agreement IV Loan AgreementV Loan Agreement VI Loan Agreement VI

ARl ARiE%= aRE%= aRBEN ARBHE LEVE R
Date of Agreement 5 November 2015 9 January 2016 22 January 2016 17 February 2016 17 February 2016 17 February 2016 17 February 2016
HEAH “Z-hfF —E-RE —E-RE —ERF —ERF —ERF “ERF
+—AAA —AnA —A=+ZH ZAttR ZAttAR ZAttAR ZAttAR
Borrower Customer [ Customer B & Customer [V Four Customers™  Customer H" Customer D Customer C
BRA BRI Customer C% BEPIO mEEFOS BP0 xpTO EPRAY
BELRAY
Loan amount HK$8.0 million HK$15.0 million HK$85.0 million HK$45.5 million HK$26.0 million HK$4.0 million HK$6.0 million
Lt 8,000,000/ 7T 15,000,000/ 7T 85,000,000/ 7T 45,500,000/ 7T 26,000,000/ T 4,000,000/ 75 6,000,000/ 75
Interest rate P+6.75%? P +5.55%% P +6.75%% P+18.75%"? P+18.75%"% P+18.75%"% P+875%%
per annum REEFEN REEFEN REBFEN REEFEM REZNEM REZNEM EEENEM
FFlE 6.75%% 5.55%@ 6.75%% 18.75%% 18.75%" 18.75%" 8.75%%
Term 12 months from 12 months from 12 months from 1 month from 1 month from 1 month from 1 month from
HR drawdown date drawdown date drawdown date drawdown date drawdown date drawdown date drawdown date
BIEA R BHEERA #at BIEEA R BIEEA #ER BIRE A dest BiREA de st BRI A de st
12187 12187 12187 &R 18R 18R 18R
Repayment borrower shall repay  borrowers shall repay borrower shall repay  borrowers shall repay borrower shall repay  borrower shall repay  borrower shall repay
&7 the interests on a the interests on a the interests on a the interests with the ~ the interests with the  the interests with the  the interests with the
monthly basis with  monthly basis with ~ monthly basis with ~ principal amount at  principal amount at  principal amountat  principal amount at
principal amount at  principal amount at  principal amount at  loan maturity loan maturity loan maturity loan maturity
loan maturity loan maturity loan maturity ERABEEMNSY EFRABEENEL 1a FANEF" BHEY ra TA)\’ET ENEY
ERAREAEEN EFAREREEN BRAAGREEN REFIHPEER REFIHREER FEBMBEER RERIHBEER
BYRERIMAR BYREFHIHAR SIREFIHAE < & @ ﬁ
EAe BAe ERE
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Loan Agreement |

Loan Agreement Il

Loan Agreement Il

Loan Agreement IV Loan AgreementV  Loan Agreement VI Loan Agreement VI

e E ERfhE= EXRHE= ERGED ERfhER e ERfhEL
Interest Interest is Interest is Interest is Interest is calculated  Interest is calculated  Interest is calculated ~ Interest is calculated
Fill) HK$80,000.00 per  HK$135,000.00 per  HK$850,000.00 per  on daily basis with the on daily basis with the on daily basis with the on daily basis with the
month month month maximum amount of - maximum amount of maximum amount of maximum amount of
FEREEA FEREEA FEREEA HK$910,000.00 HK$520,000.00 HK$80,000.00 HK$70,000.00
80,000.003 7 135,000,007 850,000.0087C FSRRA:HE &8 MERAHE && FMSRAHE && FEREHE &5
£910,000.00%7T  A520,000.00%7C  /£80,000.00% T /70,000.00/& T
Early redemption/  Handling chargesin  Handling charges Handling charges in  Nil Nil Nil Nil
renewal sum of HK$80,000.00 in sum of sum of HK$7,600,000 £ i i i

REWE/HH

Collateral

il

Approximate value
of the collateral®

ERR2BNERY

Approximate
aggregate
loan-to-value ratio®
BRAgHHMEE
t&@

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA

is payable if full
repayment is made
within one month
WREANERE
R ERFEESH
80,000.007% ¢

HK$1,200,000.00 in
total will be received
by Oi Wah PCL and
Lender A in equal
share (subject to the
terms of the Loan
Agreement Il)
BENZEENNE
AFETHREFE
£44£1,200,000.00
BTLRERRE =M

fEmE)

is payable if full
repayment is made
within 12 months
THR12{8 A MEEE
HoEAFEESH
7,600,000/ ¢

a commercial property a commercial property a commercial property fifteen commercial
located in Yuen Long, located in Tsuen Wan, located in Yuen Long, properties located in

N.T.
IR EE
UES

HK$140.0 million
140,000,000 7

loan-to-value ratio of
first mortgage to the

Group of Loan | and

Loan III approximately

66%

AREERHERTIR

N.T., Hong Kong
BB AEE

HK$50.0 million
50,000,000/ 7T

60% (loan-to-
value ratio as first
mortgages to

other independent
mortgagee:
approximately 30%,

B2 E—1EBHEA loan-to-value ratio of

ERHhELE 4
66%

first mortgage to the
Group: approximately
30%)

60% ([ At B AR

AR E—1RIEH
AEFHMELE
#30% + AAEE
Rt F—RIBHE
ERURERE 4
30%)

N.T., Hong Kong Tsim Sha Tsui, Shatin,

IR EBIRTHAZ  Kwun Tong, Tai Po
BENE and Chai Wan

TRERRKDE -
DHBE KER

KRz EENE
HK$140.0 million HK$672.7 million
140,000,0007 ¢ 672,700,000 7T

loan-to-value ratio of 61% (loan-to-

first mortgage to the  value ratio of

Group for Loan I and ~ first mortgage:

Loan Ill: approximately approximately 52%,
66% loan-to-value ratio
MASEREERIK as subordinated
BRI E—1RIBER mortgages to
EFUEENRR 4 other independent
66% mortgagees:
approximately 3%,
loan-to-value ratio
of subordinated
mortgage to the
Group: approximately
6%)

61% (% —ZBHER
BRI RELE 4
52% @ MEfEL
ERARME 2 R R
BERETEMEEY
% {3%  MALE
Rz RRIRIBHR
B RELE 4
6%)

two commercial
properties located

in Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong

BN EEEE R
ZEENE

HK$110.0 million
110,000,000/ ¢

58% (loan-to-

value ratio of

first mortgage:
approximately 16%,
loan-to-value ratio
as subordinated
mortgage to other
independent
mortgage:
approximately 18%,
loan-to-value ratio
of subordinated
mortgage to the
Group: approximately
24%)

58% (F—IZiEHE A
BERHMELE 4
16% * MEMB
HIR AR 2R B IR
BERERHEEL
R M18% A%
Bl 2 R RIZIBHE
WEFHMELE:
#24%)

an industrial property
located in Kowloon
Bay, Hong Kong
WREBNEE2T
ESVES

HK$20.0 million
20,000,000/7C

50% (loan-to-
value ratio of

first mortgage:
approximately 20%,
loan-to-value ratio
as subordinated
mortgages to

other independent
mortgagee:
approximately 10%,
loan-to-value ratio
of subordinated
mortgage to the

Group: approximately

20%)
50%(E—ZiBHA
BERHEELE 4§
20% » FEAET
R AR 2 R I
BEBETHEEL
R 410% - AAE
BIR{t 2 R RIZIBHE
FETHBER
#20%)

a residential property
located in Mei Foo,
Hong Kong
REEEREZEE
VES

HK$9.7 million
9,700,000/ T

loan-to-value ratio of
first mortgage to the
Group: approximately
62%
MAKERE -
REEREREMAE
I 4962%



Management Discussion and Analysis

Note:

(1) Itis required under Rule 13.15 of the Listing Rules to disclose the identities of the
Customers. As each of the Customers have confirmed to the Group that they will
not consent to the disclosure of their identities, the Company has applied to the
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for and has been
granted with a waiver from strict compliance with Rule 13.15 of the Listing Rules.

(2) P represented the prime rate of 5.25% of Wing Lung Bank Limited as of the date
of the Loan Agreements, subject to fluctuation.

(3) The valuation was conducted by independent valuers within one week before the
date of Loan Agreements.

(4) The loan-to-value ratio was calculated based on the valuation of the collaterals
used for the respective Loans.

(5) Four Customers represent Customer A, Customer E, Customer F and Customer G.

The advance was made on the basis of our Company’s credit
assessments on the Customers’ financial strength and repayment
ability, the collaterals provided (which are at prime sites in Hong
Kong), and the relatively short term nature of the advance. After
taking into account factors as disclosed above in assessing the risks of
the relevant advance, our Company considers that the risks involved
in the advance to the Customers are relatively low.

For further details, please refer to the Announcements.

PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

Reference is made to the announcement issued by the Company
on 5 June 2015 in relation to the placing of existing shares and
subscription for new shares under general mandate.

On 5 June 2015, the Company entered into a placing and subscription
agreement with Kwan Lik Holding Limited as vendor and Great
Roc Capital Securities Limited as placing agent for the placing and
subscription of up to 80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital (the “Shares”) of the Company at the placing price
of HK$2.03 per Share (the “Top-up Placing”). The closing price per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 5 June 2015 was HK$2.25.

The Top-up Placing was conducted in order to optimise the Group’s
capital structure.

On 16 June 2015, the Top-up Placing was completed and 80,000,000
Shares were allotted and issued to not less than six professional,
institutional and other individual investors. The net proceeds of the
Top-up Placing were approximately HK$153.0 million and the net
price per Share was approximately HK$1.9125 per Share.

EEENWE DN

B -

(1) EWRABIBISHERERRBEZREELZ2H0 - ARZF
EFSEEENAEBRBERESTERBERELSD - HA
REACAEBBAXSMERAR (B ])BFRRE
REF EWRRNE13.1506 - MBRAELRABE@HR 2R

e
@ SEEFEER RS R AR RIT AR A T5.25%
2 BEEHE(TFED) -

(3) HECHEBLGEEMRZEER BB —FARET -

(4) EREFHELEDBESBEERABZERRZHEFE -

(5) MWEBEFPEEPH EPK FEPCOREPR-
fEHBRRKZERBIANRAREZETP 2P HEET R
BRENMEZEERNG iR 2ZFHERRTD
URBBZESHEANBRBEGERHLEE - 1
EWE*E?@**L%KZHE B ARRRER EXHEL
AEL RRELEEBRRTRZEEPAIRZA
@i o
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As at 29 February 2016, the net proceeds from the Top-up Placing of
approximately HK$153.0 million had been used as follows:

i) approximately HK$122.4 million was used for expanding the
loan portfolio of the Group; and

i)  approximately HK$30.6 million was used for general working
capital of the Group;

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 29 February 2016, our Group had a total of 52 staff (28 February
2015: 54). Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) were
approximately HK$25.5 million for FY2016 (FY2015: approximately
HK$22.0 million). Remuneration is determined with reference to
market conditions and the performance, qualifications and experience
of each individual employee. Bonus based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include a share option scheme and
contributions to statutory mandatory provident fund scheme to our
Group's employees in Hong Kong.

PURCHASE,
SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s securities during FY2016.

SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Our Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or disposals
during FY2016.

e 0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEMEEERRAR AT
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure
in submitting this report of the Directors together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 29 February 2016.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing secured financing business in
Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans.

The listing of and the permission to deal in the shares of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange commenced on 12 March
2013 (the “Listing”). The prospectus in relation to the Listing was
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company
on 27 February 2013.

Financial Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 29 February 2016 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 62 to 124 of this
annual report.

Cash Flow Position

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended 29 February
2016 is set out and analysed in the consolidated statement of cash
flows set out on pages 66 to 67 of this annual report.

Dividend

At our Board meeting held on 25 May 2016, our Directors proposed
to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.65 cents per
ordinary share, together with the interim dividend of HKO0.65 cents,
representing 30.2% of the profit attributable to our Shareholders of
our Company for FY2016. The total payout for the final dividend will
be amounted to approximately HK$13.8 million. The aforesaid final
dividend is subject to approval by our Shareholders at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM") and will be paid on Wednesday,
31 August 2016 to our Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of our Company at the close of business on
Monday, 1 August 2016.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends was made by the Company.

Report of the Directors
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Special dividend

The Board recommended the payment of a special dividend of
HKO0.43 cents (2015: Nil) per ordinary share, representing 10.0%
of the profit attributable to our Shareholders of our Company for
FY2016. The total payout for the special dividend will be amounted
to approximately HK$9.1 million. The special dividend will be paid
in cash, with an option where our Shareholders may elect to receive
in the form of new shares of the Company or partly in shares and
partly in cash. The aforesaid special dividend is subject to approval
by our Shareholders at the AGM and will be paid on Wednesday,
31 August 2016 to our Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of our Company at the close of business on
Monday, 1 August 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish the identity of our Shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
our Company’'s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom Share
Registrars (HK) Limited at 31/F., 148 Electric Road North Point Hong
Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 July 2016. The
register of members of our Company will be closed from Thursday,
21 July 2016 to Monday, 25 July 2016, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to establish the identity of our Shareholders who are entitled
to the proposed final dividend and special dividend, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 31/F., 148 Electric Road
North Point Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 28 July
2016. The register of members of our Company will be closed from
Friday, 29 July 2016 to Monday, 1 August 2016, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject
to Shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend and special
dividend at the AGM, the final dividend and special dividend will be
paid on Wednesday, 31 August 2016 to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of our Company at the close of
business on Monday, 1 August 2016.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR A A
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on pages 6 to 9 of this annual
report.

Transfer to reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$91,365,939
(2015: HK$80,091,046) has been transferred to reserves.

Distributable Reserves

As at 29 February 2016, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of the Company was approximately HK$286.5 million (2015:
approximately HK$175.3 million).

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 24 to
the financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements of property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the year ended 29 February 2016 are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the year
ended 29 February 2016 are set out in note 24(a) to the financial
statements. Shares were issue during the year under placing and
bonus issue. Details about the issue of shares are also set out in note
24(a) to the financial statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole shareholder on 19
February 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to them to
promote the success of the business of the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
any employee (full-time and part-time), consultant, adviser, Director
(including executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
Director), Substantial Shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)), distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of any member of the Group whom the
Board determines have contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

As at 29 February 2016, being the end of FY2016 for the Group:

i) no option has ever been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since the Adoption Date; and

i)  a total of 40,000,000 options to subscribe for shares were
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 1.89% of the total issued shares of the Company
as at 29 February 2016.

The aggregate number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. No option may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company if this will result in the limit being exceeded.
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The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
Adoption Date (excluding, for this purpose, shares of the Company
issuable upon exercise of options which have been granted but which
have lapsed in accordance with the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company) must not in aggregate exceed
10% of all shares of the Company in issue upon 12 March 2013 (the
“Listing Date”) (i.e. 40,000,000 shares). The limit of 10% may be
refreshed at any time by approval of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting provided that the total number of the shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general meeting,
the maximum number of shares underlying the options granted to
each eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares
of the Company in issue for the time being.

A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may subscribe
for the shares of the Company on the exercise of an option at the
price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which
an option is offered to a participant, which must be a business date
(the “Offer Date"”); (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
Offer Date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force until 18 February 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, no options had been granted or
agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors

EFEERE

Directors EE

The Directors who held office during the year ended 29 February REZE-—ZE—NE-_A-+NhBLHEEREEARE
2016 and up to the date of this annual report are: WAMEE2ESTHT
Executive Directors: HITES !

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) RS (EEFTHAEE)
Mr. Chan Chart Man FRE &

Ms. Chan Mei Fong FREF 2+

Ms. Chan Ying Yu PRE® AT

Non-executive Director: FHTES

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion PREEIR S &

Independent non-executive Directors: BYEHITES :

Mr. Chan Wing Lee BER oK ) 5 A

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert RIKEE L

Dr. Yip Ngai BERE+

Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of the Company A AR AL SEMEI([ABZEME |)E108
(“Articles of Association”) and code provision A.4.2 of the &k FM#RAIMSE T+ MR EE ST 2 TRNE
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing XEA 421 =97 —EBFBN AR TREIAEK
Rules, one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation at the annual & &% EET IS EHB A RS FEZEBET - FIt -
general meeting of the Company and will be eligible for re-election  PRERS e 4 ~ R L+ MFREER L A 8 R FEE IR
at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei ~ BiRFE K& FiEF @ WHAEEHEEIZET o
Fong and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion will retire at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM are set RBERBFEAS IETEE 7 EE 7 BEHNER
out in the circular sent to the shareholders of the Company together — ARG — 3 F AN A B IR ZE K ©
with this annual report.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non- KA RCEEZSBEIIERNTESEE FTHRBE
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence 3 13{&BH v FEB I URRE - KXARRAEME
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers 8\ JEETE ST AL AT

all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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EEEHE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short FERFENROEREHEBEROZERZER
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares 3y}

As at 25 May 2016, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons other than a 17
%
%

—E-R"FRA=-+AHA ﬁi%%ﬁ& I
BAB P - ZAR AR E S RS [
Director or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a REHEW%EM ) FE336EBATHFEEZ B Hﬁﬁﬁ
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company &% - LA~
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under ~ ZX/2 &)

section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"):

i
AT (BRRARREBITBRABRIMNR
[ in KRR P A RS TR R ¢

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares (Note 2)
BOFRE DL
BERETE, 5 TEREE (Btat2)
Kwan Lik Holding Limited (Note 1)(#tz£1) Beneficial interest 1,248,752,000 58.9
EmiEm
Ms. Chan Nga Yu (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,248,752,000 58.9
BRAEm 22 (et T) REEE 2 #m
Interest held jointly with another person 52,960,000 2.5
Hifh A HFIFE 2w
Ms. Chan Kit Yu (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,248,752,000 58.9
BRRm T (M) REEEE 2
Interest held jointly with another person 52,960,000 2.5
Hifh A R E 2 s
Ms. Mui Hang Sin (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,248,752,000 58.9
BNz (Matr) AL s
Interest held jointly with another person 52,960,000 2.5
g A KFESE
Value Partners Group Limited (Note 3)(f/z#3) Interest in a controlled corporation 150,752,000 7.11
REEE 2 #Em
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund Beneficial interest 128,528,000 6.06
gy Jo (Note 4)(HfiF4)
CCB International Asset Management Limited  Investment manager 106,244,000 5.01
REKIE
Notes: HaE -
1. Kwan Lik Holding Limited is owned as to 40%, 20%, 20%, 5%, 5%, 5% and 5% 1. Kwan Lik Holding Limited 1R X 5E4£ ~ [REASSEL - R
by Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan %J%A/Jﬁi FHBK L BEBLL  REFLZLREDW
Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Ms. Mui Hang Sin, respectively. D FNHEBA40% ~ 20% ~ 20% 5% 5% * 5%K5% °
Accordingly, Mr. Chan Chart Man and his family members, namely Mr. Chan Kai Eﬁb RIZZFFREENRO) - REX S EREFKEKE (AN
Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan BRSAE RERL L REFSLZ L FHRELLT  BZE
Kit Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin are deemed to be interested in the 1,248,752,000 1+ RIGBENZ 1) R AR Kwan Lik Holding Limited BT
shares of the Company owned by Kwan Lik Holding Limited by virtue of the SFO. HH.21,248,752,000R KL\ IR (7 R HER HEa ©

2, There were 2,120,000,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 25 May 2016. 2. RZFE-—ANFAEAZ-+HEA ARAIEETRHEE B
2,120,000,0004% °

3 The 150,752,000 shares of the Company were held by Value Partners Limited 3. AR aA]#9150,752,0000% R (7 £ Value Partners Limited#5 % -

which is wholly owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, a company which i1 Value Partners Limited Value Partners Hong Kong Limited
is wholly owned by Value Partners Group Limited. (A Value Partners Group Limited = BH# B )~ 7]) 2 EHAE »
4. The number of shares is calculated and adjusted based on the 32,132,000 shares 4. BGEMAEALNGR -ZZE—RF+ANHRKZEZValue
of the Company held by Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund as disclosed Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fundfr # #& 2 A #
by it on 9 July 2015, on the basis of 3 bonus shares issued on 18 August 2015 by 32,132,000 R 175t ERFAE  BEZARNAR_-_F—F
the Company for every 1 existing share of the Company held on 7 August 2015. FENAFTNARR=ZF—AFNALAHEZEFIRE LA

BHR D FITIRATR -

Save as disclosed herein, as at 25 May 2016, there was no otherperson B EX AT BEEN R=ZZE—X"FRAA=-+HA -
so far known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company, BEZEFHARAEETHRAEMA @ AR EIR
other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company as having & H KB EEHIEI6KATHFE 2 ZLMATR
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of &%+ WAAEMA T (ZESH AR A EETHRAER
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the ~ #N ARG RN BB MNP IEEEZIAE °

Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

EFEERE

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 25 May 2016, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of the Company and their respective associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he was taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or were required pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, are set out below:

EERROREERO 2EZER AR

RZZB-—RFRAA-_+THE BEEFKARAEE
THRABRBEESE B ZHE ARA QR KA (A AEE
EE(ERRES LR GRAIFEXVER) 2 Bfn - 18-
Bih REHT - BHEAREESRARGRMEXVE
FIRFSD MG A RR MRz Em xR (B
ERBEES KB EIA BRI EER MR R
BzalRR)  XARBIESMHEEIIFE352
RBAZIGPIIEE LA ERS RAR  HEBERE
LT RARERETESXZNELETAMNEAQE
KB 32 Py 2 #E sk ROR BB T -

Interest in the shares of the Company REQTRRG 2 ER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 2)
BMAFRB DL
EEMA ERME il (Htetz)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,248,752,000 58.9
BRERZR Se 4 (Hat1) NSRRI
Beneficial interest 52,960,000 2.5
BatEn
Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,248,752,000 58.9
BREE X Se 4 (Hat1) REEEE 2
Interest held jointly with another person 52,960,000 2.5
Bt A K EREE 2
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,248,752,000 58.9
BREFS L+ (HiaF1) MRIEEE 2 #Es
Interest held jointly with another person 52,960,000 2.5
By A HRIRH 2 s
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,248,752,000 58.9
PREH L+ (HaE1) NSRRI
Interest held jointly with another person 52,960,000 2.5
B A K FREE 2 R
Notes: Htat -

BEXSEE  BRSSEE REFBLLREEFLZ L5 5
#HKwan Lik Holding Limited B #7T/&17.240% * 20% -
20% /5% ' [fiKwan Lik Holding Limited# B 7 2 7] 2 %77
KK 258.9% ° Bt » RIZZESRHEIEH] - BREX L -
BT A4  BRERLZ L REFEES X+ #18 B Kwan Lik
Holding Limited BT## 5.2 1,248,752, 0004 i (7 #E B 2 °

i, Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Ms. Chan 1.
Mei Fong owns 40%, 20%, 20% and 5%, respectively, of the issued shares of
Kwan Lik Holding Limited which is in turn interested in 58.9% of the Company’s
issued share capital. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Ms. Chan Mei Fong are deemed to be interested in the
1,248,752,000 shares owned by Kwan Lik Holding Limited by virtue of the SFO.

RIEB-—NFEA-THH AXRAEZETRGHEER
2,120,000,0004% °

2. There were 2,120,000,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 25 May 2016. 2.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR A A



Save as disclosed above, as at 25 May 2016, none of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company or their respective associates had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or were required pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 29
February 2016 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was
a party and in which any director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any
business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to compete
with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

EFEERE

Directors’ Remuneration

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorisation of the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting each year. The remuneration of the executive
Directors is subject to review by the remuneration committee, and
their remuneration is determined with reference including but not
limited to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors. As for the non-executive Director
and the independent non-executive Directors, their remuneration
is determined by the Board upon recommendation from the
remuneration committee. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
are set out in note 9 and the five highest paid individuals are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company dated 12 March 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from the date of such service agreement, and such
service agreements may be terminated in accordance with the terms
of the service agreements.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
dated 12 March 2016, for a term of three years commencing from
the date of such letter of appointment, and such appointment
may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the letters of
appointment.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with members of the Group that is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR A A
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 29 February 2016.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Major Customers

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
together accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s sales.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at 25 May 2016, the
Company maintains the prescribed percentage of public float under
the Listing Rules.

Non-Competition Undertaking

The Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, namely, Kwan Lik Holding Limited, Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, Mr. Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong,
Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin entered
into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”)
in favour of the Company on 21 February 2013 pursuant to which
the Controlling Shareholders have undertaken to the Company (for
itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or he or she would
not, and would procure that its or his or her associates (other than
any member of our Group) would not, directly or indirectly, carry
on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent,
director, employee or otherwise) any business which is or may be
in competition with the current businesses of the Group during the
restricted period.
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Report of the Directors

EFEERE

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the
Controlling Shareholders on compliance with each of their respective
undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is
fully complied with and duly enforced since the Listing Date and up
to the date of this report.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions of the Group constituted continuing
connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”)
for the Group for the year ended 29 February 2016:

(A) Personal guarantees

(i)  On 24 October 2012, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an
executive Director executed a guarantee to provide a
personal guarantee to a relevant landlord to secure the
due performance of Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited
("0i Wah HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, under a tenancy agreement in respect of
renting a premises to operate one of our pawnshops for a
term of three years from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016.
No consideration has been paid by the Group to Mr. Chan
Kai Ho Edward for his provision of the personal guarantee
to the said landlord for the benefits of our Group.

The above personal guarantee provided by Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, whom being a connected person of the Company,
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
which are exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.
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$ AEREZIERBRRABTRESBEETBF
RIFh 2 AHEBH 2 FEERE -

BYIRTEECERIERBRRETIBFRIEZ
FR THRERAFEE ITTHBEEEAREBEIEE

SEETREENTTRERE -
RERERS
BE-Z-AF-A-+tNBLFE KEETF
R SHWAAEE Y BERER S ((HEREXS )

(A) EAEK

() RZE—Z-ZF+AZ+HH HITES
ﬁﬁ%%iﬂi_ﬁ%%’uﬂ_ﬁm
MEFREBEAZR BRRIAGEE
TENBRARBREREFEARAA
(f%i@%ﬁﬁ BITEBEE—KR
REEAREE —BREEZYELHE
e BRA-_ZT—=FmWA—HZEZ
E-R"E=ZA=+—H0" BREBE=F- K
SEUVEMRBFEEREAEE 2 Fm
i A bt 3 1R At 2 A HE AR (A H 32 AT

RE -

LA EAR AR R R E A LR S R ZI)\
EREKAQRRZHERER S  BEX
%%%E?imﬁ%%MA%HMETZ$
W D RBIRELOEZRE



B) Tenancy agreements

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 30 May 2014, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Hing
Wah HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a tenancy agreement (“Hing
Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with Kwan Chart (Holding)
Company Limited (“Kwan Chart Holding”), which is
owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chan Chart Man, an
executive Director and by his spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, respectively.
Pursuant to the Hing Wah Tenancy Agreement, Kwan
Chart Holding shall lease a premises to Hing Wah HK for
a term of two years from 8 June 2014 to 7 June 2016 at
a monthly rent of HK$80,000.

On 30 May 2014, for the purpose of operating one of
our pawnshops, Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Wai
Wah HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a tenancy agreement (“Wai Wah
Tenancy Agreement”) with Mr. Chan Chart Man, an
executive Director. Pursuant to the Wai Wah Tenancy
Agreement, Mr. Chan Chart Man shall lease a premises
to Wai Wah HK for a term of two years from 8 June 2014
to 7 June 2016 at a monthly rent of HK$80,000.

On 30 May 2014, for the purpose of operating our head
office, Oi Wah HK entered into a tenancy agreement
("Oi Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with Kwan Chart
Estate Company Limited (“Kwan Chart Estate”), which
is owned as to 95% and 5% by Mr. Chan Chart Man, an
executive Director and by his spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, respectively.
Pursuant to the Oi Wah Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart
Estate shall lease a premises to Oi Wah HK for a term
of two years from 31 May 2014 to 30 May 2016 at a
monthly rent and management fee of HK$48,000 and
HK$9,500 respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EFEERE

Annual review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed
by the independent non-executive Directors who have confirmed that
the Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to (or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain review
procedures in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors have provided a letter to the Board confirming that for the
year ended 29 February 2016 the Continuing Connected Transactions
(i) have received approval of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (iii) have been entered
into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the respective cap amounts
for the year ended 29 February 2016 as set out above in respect of
the Continuing Connected Transactions.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions
that did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules
made during the year were disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to
indemnify the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
The coverage and the sum insured under the policy are reviewed
annually. Further, the Company’s Articles of Association provide that
Directors are entitled to be indemnified out of the Company’s assets
against claims from third parties in respect of certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

Business Review

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 11 to
26 under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report, which forms part of this report of the Directors.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by KPMG,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman

Hong Kong,
25 May 2016

Report of the Directors
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Corporate Governance Practices

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock Exchange
with effect from the Listing Date. The Company is committed to
achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance
consistent with the needs and requirements of its business and the
Shareholders. The Company has adopted the code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality board, sound internal controls, and transparency
and accountability to all Shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 29 February 2016 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions, except Code Provision A.2.1 which requires the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
an executive Director, currently holds both positions. Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the Group, who
has been primarily involved in formulation of business strategies and
determination of the overall direction of the Group. He has also been
chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations as he directly supervises
other executive Directors and senior management of the Group.
Taking into account the continuation of the implementation of the
Group’s business plans, the Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) consider that Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the
best candidate for both positions and the present arrangements are
beneficial and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole.

In addition, to demonstrate the Company’s continued commitment
to high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a
board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply with a new Code
Provisions on board diversity. With the adoption of our board diversity
policy, the Company has expanded the duty scope of the Nomination
Committee to include the monitoring of the implementation of the

policy.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.

Directors
The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company, is responsible for
leadership and control of the Company and overseeing the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board has
delegated to the senior management of the Company the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board committees
and has delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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The Board reserved its decision for all major matters of the Company,
including: approving and monitoring all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to
the management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities include
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating day-
to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the Board,
formulating and monitoring the operation and production plans and
budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control systems.

For the year ended 29 February 2016, the Board held seven formal
meetings. Attendance of individual Directors at the Board meeting
for the year ended 29 February 2016 is as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Name of Director

Board Meeting Annual General Meeting

BEERS EE NS BRRBFERE
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward PREAZ A&

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) — (F/EFiTHEE,) 7/7 1/1
Mr. Chan Chart Man PRIE LI 4/7 1/1
Ms. Chan Ying Yu PR3 2+ 717 1/1
Ms. Chan Mei Fong BRIEFS 2+ 6/7 1/1
Non-executive Director: FHHITESF -

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion BREABRSE A& 6/7 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHFPITESF -

Mr. Chan Wing Lee BRoK ) S A 6/7 1/1
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert RIKHEIEL 6/7 1/1
Dr. Yip Ngai BERELT 6/7 1/1

For the year ended 29 February 2016, apart from the meetings of the
Board, consent/approval from the Board had also been obtained by
written resolutions on a number of matters.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 June
2012. For the year ended 29 February 2016, one general meeting of
the Company was held.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director, currently holds both
the positions of chairman and chief executive office. Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the Group, who
has been primarily involved in formulation of business strategies and
determination of the overall direction of the Group. He has also been
chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations as he directly supervises
other executive Directors and senior management of the Group.
Taking into account the continuation of the implementation of the
Group’s business plans, the Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) consider that Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the
best candidate for both positions and the present arrangements are
beneficial and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole.
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Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The current composition of the Board is as
follows:
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Membership of Board Committee(s)

EExZEEmE

Executive Directors:

HITESE -

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
FBREAR S (F/EFHTHAEEL)

Mr. Chan Chart Man

PR HE

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
PREHI L +

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

BREF XL

Non-executive Director:
FHNITEF :

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
BRERIR 4

Independent non-executive Directors:
BUHHTEE -

Mr. Chan Wing Lee
BRoX S A

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
RIHEE L

Dr. Yip Ngai
EREL

Member of Remuneration Committee
FMEESXE
Member of Nomination Committee

REZEEKE

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

SMEEEEfE

Member of Audit Committee
EZEZEE®NKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REZEEKE

Chairman of Nomination Committee
REEESERE

Member of Audit Committee
EZEZEEKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
FMEZEEeXE

Chairman of Audit Committee
EREEEERE
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-
executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such number
of independent non-executive directors representing at least one-
third of the Board, and at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert was admitted as
an associate of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
(currently known as Association of Chartered Certified Accountants)
in February 1987 and became an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (currently known as HKICPA) in September 1988.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 57 to 59 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 57 to 59 of this annual
report, the Board members do not have any family, financial or
business relationship with each other.

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, and each of the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date and is subject to the
re-appointment of each of the Directors by the Company at an annual
general meeting upon retirement.

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting; and
(i) as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.
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In addition, every Director should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. At every annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation according to Article
108(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

All the Directors received an induction on appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operation of the
Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. The
Directors will also be updated from time to time on the business
development and operation plans of the Company.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Company will arrange
for, and provide fund for, all the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development organised in the form of in-house training,
seminars or other appropriate courses to keep them refresh of their
knowledge, skill and understanding of the Group and its business
or to update their skills and knowledge on the latest development
or changes in the relevant statutes, the Listing Rules and corporate
governance practices. The Company will also update the Directors of
any material changes in the Listing Rules and corporate governance
practices from time to time.

Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. Each of the
non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from 12 March 2016.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the standard set out in Appendix 10
(Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers)
(the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules, in relation to the dealings
in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, each Director has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 29 February 2016 and up to
the date of this annual report.
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Board Committees
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing with specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. With the adoption
of board diversity policy to comply with a new Code Provisions, the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 23
May 2014. According to the board diversity policy, the Board should
be composed of directors with diversed skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
The Nomination Committee considered the Board composition was
in compliance with the board diversity policy.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and senior management. The existing members of the
Nomination Committee include Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert and Mr.
Chan Wing Lee, both are independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the reporting
year. During the meeting, the Nomination Committee proposed to the
Board to re-elect retiring Directors and re-appointed Mr. Chan Chart
Man as executive Director, Dr. Yip Ngai as independent non-executive
Director and Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert as independent non-executive
Director. The Nomination Committee reviewed the independence
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of the independent non-executive Directors and composition of the HFERZEES @5 708 ¢
Board. Please refer to the table below for the attendance record of
the meetings of the Nomination Committee during the year ended
29 February 2016:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings held
= HE,BOIEBRE
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
ZKEE T (FBEZE2F/E) 1/1
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
BRERZR ST 4 1/1
Mr. Chan Wing Lee
BRI A 584 1/1
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing with specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary functions
of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
determine on behalf of the Board specific remuneration packages and
conditions of employment for the Directors and senior management,
assess performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms
of executive Directors’ service contracts. The existing members of the
Remuneration Committee include Mr. Chan Wing Lee and Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki Albert, both are independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director. Mr. Chan Wing Lee
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock

Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the reporting
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year. During these meetings, the Remuneration Committee reviewed 8 & a Ho EEHEEHIN R EMER L/{&,EJ,Z&
the Directors’ salaries and other allowances and the remuneration EBEEBHMEEZZEE - TRXIFHESREE
of the senior management and assessment system. Please refer to —/\i AZThhHIEFELEEHFNEZ iéﬁgm
the table below for the attendance record of the meeting of the  Z2&% :
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 29 February 2016:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meeting held
= HiEBITERRE
Mr. Chan Wing Lee (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
BROXNISEE (FrWZE &L /E) 2/2
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
BRRER SE 4 2/2
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
RFEE+ 2/2
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing with specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are, amongst other things, to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and the internal control
systems of the Group. The existing members of the Audit Committee
comprise Dr. Yip Ngai, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert and Mr. Chan Wing
Lee, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Dr. Yip
Ngai is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the reporting
year. During these meetings, the Audit Committee confirmed the
appointment of KPMG and fixed its remuneration, reviewed the
procedures of internal control of the Group. The Audit Committee
was of the view that the procedures of internal control of the Group
were effective. The Audit Committee also reviewed the interim and
annual results of the Group for the financial year and the auditors’
report prepared by the external auditors in relation to accounting
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matters and any material findings during the audit. The Audit BE{EHEHFE - TREIVEETRNHE_ZT—F
Committee was of the opinion that such financial statements and —A-+hHIFEHEEREE 3 V4%
report complied with the applicable accounting policy standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made. Please
refer to the table below for the attendance record of the meetings
of the Audit Committee during the year ended 29 February 2016:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings held
=} HEBITEBRRE
Dr. Yip Ngai (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
ERIE+ (FRZESFE) 2/2
Mr. Chan Wing Lee
BRI SE A4 212
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
RIEE L 212
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the development
and review of the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Group and monitoring the compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the annual report.

In order to comply with the requirements of the Code Provisions
A.6.5, all Directors participated in training in relation to continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed. The Board has also reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and this corporate governance report.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 29 February 2016 is summarised below:
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Attending or participating in seminars/conferences/

Names of Directors

EEHA

corporate events or reading regulatory updates/
journals relating to director’s duties

HERSNMNE 8 FKEDHR
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Executive Directors
HITEE

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
FREAR ST

Mr. Chan Chart Man
PR IR ST

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

PR S 30 22 =

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
PREF L
Non-executive Director

FERNTEE
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion

BREUER 2 4

Independent non-executive Directors
BUFHITEE

Mr. Chan Wing Lee

BRAAISE £

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

RIHEE L

Dr. Yip Ngai

EBRE+
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Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rules 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 29 February
2016. Currently, the Company’s external auditors are KPMG (the
“Auditors”).

For the year ended 29 February 2016, the fees paid or payable by the
Company to the Auditors amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million,
which was all for audit services.

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 61 of this annual report.

During the year ended 29 February 2016, the Group appointed
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited (“Baker Tilly”) as
the independent adviser to carry out an internal control review for
the year ended 29 February 2016 at a fee of approximately HK$0.3
million.

Internal Controls

A sound and effective internal control system is important to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
During the year ended 29 February 2016, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. Baker Tilly was hired to assist the Board to perform high-level
review of internal control systems for selected business operations
and processes. The principal purpose of the internal control review
carried out by Baker Tilly was to obtain sufficient knowledge of the
control environment and to understand the attitude, awareness and
actions of management of the Group. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions of the Group. The internal control report
issued by Baker Tilly revealed that the Group has set up a sound
internal control mechanism. Based on the findings of Baker Tilly and
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal
control system of the Group was effective, adequate and there was
no significant area which might concern the Shareholders.
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Delegation by the Board

In general, the Board oversees the Company'’s strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group.
The Board also monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies for risk management in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board delegates the
implementation of strategies and day-to-day operation of the Group
to the management.

Company Secretary

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang, the company secretary appointed by the Board
and an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the Board,
possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and is capable
of performing the functions of the company secretary. The Company
will provide fund for Mr. Cheng to take not less than 15 hours of
appropriate professional training in each financial year as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders
Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of
the Company. The Board also recognises that effective communication
with the Company’s investors is critical in establishing investor
confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the Group is
committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure the
Shareholders and the investors of the Company will receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group through the
publication of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and
circulars. The Company also publishes all corporate communications
on the website of the Company.

In respect of each matter to be considered at the annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-election
of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the Chairman.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the relevant committee or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Company will invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Shareholders’ Rights

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company for
the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the
Company’'s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom Share
Registrars (HK) Limited:

Address: 31/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point
Hong Kong
Email: srinfo.hk@boardroomlimited.com
Tel: (852) 21531688
Fax: (852) 30205058

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company
at the following designated contact, correspondence address,
email address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Attention: Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang
(Company Secretary)

Address: Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower,
No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email: brian.cheng@oiwah.com.hk

Tel: (852) 28332002

Fax: (852) 28919831
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3.  Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders

7

Meetings

(i)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as
a Director:

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, a
Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting should lodge (i) notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director; and (ii) notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected, at either (a) the head office of
the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan
Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
or (b) the registration office of the Company in Hong
Kong at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.
The period for lodgment of the notices mentioned above
will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices to the Company may
be given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may lodge
a written request, duly signed, at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan
Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
marked for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar and upon confirmation by the share registrar
that the request is proper and in order, and is made by
a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion decide
whether the Proposal may be included in the agenda
for the general meeting to be set out in the notice of
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting of
the Company.
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(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(3)  Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Shareholders passed on 19
February 2013, the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company were adopted with effect from
the Listing Date. Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 29
February 2016, there was no significant change in the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company.

The Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association

of the Company are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the website of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREXE), aged 45, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is also a director
of each of Oi Wah Holding Limited (“Oi Wah Holding"), Oi Wah HK,
Wai Wah HK and Hing Wah HK and the authorised representative of
the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible
for our Group’s overall management, strategic planning and business
development. He has over 15 years of experience in business
management and pawn loan business. Mr. Chan is currently the
chairman of the Hong Kong and Kowloon Pawnbrokers’ Association
Limited (B LI E) and honorary chairman of Macau General
Chamber of Pawnbrokers CEPFIE A E). Mr. Chan has been
the vice-president of Hong Kong Property Finance Association
Limited since March 2014. Mr. Chan obtained a degree of Bachelor
of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the City University, London,
United Kingdom in July 1994. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Chart
Man and the brother of Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.

Mr. Chan Chart Man (BR %€ XX), aged 85, is our founder and executive
Director. He is also a director of each of Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah HK,
Wai Wah HK and Hing Wah HK. Mr. Chan is responsible for advising
on overall strategic planning and business development of our Group.
Mr. Chan established the business of our Group in 1975 and has
played a significant role in the growth of our business. He has over
40 years of experience in finance and pawn loan business. Mr. Chan
is the father of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms.
Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are our
Directors.

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (FR3£55), aged 46, is our executive Director
and chief operating officer. Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2007 and
is responsible for the overall operations of our Group’s business.
Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Town and Country
Planning from the University of the West of England, Bristol, United
Kingdom in September 1996. Ms. Chan also obtained a diploma
in Gemmology and Gem Diamond diploma from the Gemmological
Association And Gem Testing Laboratory Of Great Britain in January
2006 and January 2007, respectively. Ms. Chan is a fellow of The
Gemmological Association of Great Britain. Ms. Chan is the daughter
of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are
our Directors.

Ms. Chan Ying Yu (PR %), aged 51, is our executive Director. She
is also a director of Oi Wah HK and the authorised representative of
the Company. Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible
for overseeing our administration and human resources matters. Ms.
Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant
Management from the Middlesex University, United Kingdom in July
1995 and was elected as an associate of the Hotel and Catering
International Management Association in October 1995. Ms. Chan is
the daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all
of whom are our Directors.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (BREER), aged 61, was appointed
as our non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr. Chan is a
lawyer with 30 years of experience in general practice. He has passed
solicitor qualifying examinations in Hong Kong and was admitted as
a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in March 1984 and has
been a partner in Chow C.L. & Macksion Chan since 2001. Mr. Chan
obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Pure Mathematics degree from The
University of Calgary, Canada in June 1978. Mr. Chan is the son of
Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms.
Chan Mei Fong and Ms. Chan Ying Yu, all of whom are our Directors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Lee (PR’ Fl), aged 79, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr. Chan
has over 37 years of commercial banking experience. Mr. Chan
was an independent non-executive director in Gemini Investments
(Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from August 2004 to November 2010.

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (R Jk#), aged 67, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Leung
currently serves as the company secretary of Union Medical Healthcare
Limited which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 2138). Dr. Leung was also served as an independent
non-executive director of Nga Chun Holdings Company Limited and
Skyway Securities Group Limited, which are both listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1462 and 1141) until
February 2016 and November 2015 respectively. Dr. Leung was also
served as an independent non-executive director of Ruifeng Petroleum
Chemical Holdings Ltd, which is listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8096) until October 2015. Dr. Leung was also
an assistant vice president in Citicorp International Limited from 1987
to 1992. Dr. Leung was admitted as an associate of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants (now known as Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became an
associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as
HKICPA) in September 1988. Dr. Leung obtained a Doctorate degree
of Philosophy in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics in September 2007, a Master degree of Business
Administration from Brunel University, United Kingdom in December
1985 and a Diploma in Management Studies from The Polytechnic
of Central London, United Kingdom in October 1983.
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Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Yip Ngai (%), aged 42, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Yip is a jewellery
appraiser and valuation expert and has over 22 years of experience
in jewellery and art industry. Dr. Yip became a fellow of the HKICPA
in May 2012 and an international certified financial planner of the
LOMA and the CICFP in August 2014. He has been appointed as a
specialist by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
& Vocational Qualifications and since July 2011 and as a technical
advisor (watch and jewellery) by the Employees Retraining Board
since September 2013. Dr. Yip obtained a Doctorate degree in
business administration from the European University in May 2011
and a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) degree from the Monash
University, Australia in November 1999. Dr. Yip obtained a diploma
in gemmology from the Gemmological Association and Gem Testing
Laboratory of Great Britain in October 1994. Dr. Yip received the
Preliminary Trade Prize from the Gemmological Association and Gem
Testing Laboratory of Great Britain in 1993.

Senior Management

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (ER#1), aged 34, is our financial controller
and company secretary. He joined our Group in June 2012 and is
responsible for overseeing the financial, accounting and secretarial
affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheng worked at
KPMG from 2006 to 2012 and his last position was assistant manager.
Mr. Cheng was registered as a certified public accountant and a
certified public accountant (practising) of the HKICPA in January 2010
and September 2012, respectively. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of
Business Administration in Accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in November 2006.

Mr. Ng Kai Man (i), aged 56, is our marketing director and
is responsible for managing and operating our property mortgage
department. Mr. Ng joined our Group in 2013. His main duties are
strengthening customer relationships by scheduling regular personal
and company visits in Hong Kong in order to explore new business
opportunities with potential customers. Prior to joining our Group,
he had been working in Wing Lung Bank since 1988 and was
promoted to senior financial manager in 2010. Mr. Ng obtained a
Diploma in marketing from Hong Kong Productivity Council and Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing in 1999 and a professional Diploma in
marketing management from Hong Kong Management Association
in 1996 respectively. In 1999 he was elected full member of Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing and awarded as Professional Marketer
(ProM) in 2001. He also obtained an advanced professional Diploma
in financial planning from The University of Hong Kong, School of
Professional and Continuing Education in 2006. In 2005, he has been
admitted as a Certified Professional Marketer (Asia) by Asia Marketing
Federation, which is a member of World Marketing Federation.

Company Secretary

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (ZR#2#7) is our company secretary. Biographical
details of Mr. Cheng are set out under the paragraph headed “Senior
management” in this section.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 1% A

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oi
Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 62 to 124,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as
at 29 February 2016, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 29 February
2016 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 May 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEZEBAR

For the year ended 29 February 2016 HZ=—Z—XF_A=-+ABILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 72517R)

Note 2016 2015
BaE —E-XRE —E—hF
$ $

Revenue W 3 186,657,644 146,516,719
Other revenue H A as 4,661,668 10,342,775
Other net loss H g8 558 (2,264) (76,011)
Operating income BERA 191,317,048 156,783,483
Operating expenses Hih & &5 6 (58,799,250) (49,413,986)
(Charge for)/release of impairment (1) /RO EWER 2

losses on loan receivables BB E1E 7 (491,384) 282,348
Profit from operations KRR 132,026,414 107,651,845
Finance costs RBE B A 6(a) (22,658,543) (11,526,585)
Profit before taxation BR B A i A 6 109,367,871 96,125,260
Income tax T8 % 8 (18,001,932) (16,034,214)
Profit and total comprehensive FEBFREZEKALLE

income for the year 91,365,939 80,091,046
Profit and total comprehensive REELEFEERFNREZE

income for the year attributable LON-Y |

to shareholders 91,365,939 80,091,046
Earnings per share (in HK cents) BREFR (EAL) 11 4.4 3.9*

* Amount for the year ended 28 February 2015 adjusted for the * HZE-—ZT—RAF_-_A -+ /\BILFEZLZHEDH
bonus shares issued on 18 August 2015 “E—RFNATN\BETZAKREL AR

The notes on pages 68 to 124 form part of these financial statements. 6821248 2 M I B It E MRz 2 — 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= A B §
e B A AR R 3R
As at 29 February 2016 R =T —"XF=-A=+NH
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 L5I7R)

Note 2016 2015
B 5T —E-RE —ET—RF
$ $

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WERZE 12 1,285,577 1,679,710
Loan receivables e E K 13 74,836,363 72,067,706
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A e FR I8 14 5,770,220 5,097,488
Deferred tax assets BERIAE E 23(b) 350,756 300,957
82,242,916 79,145,861

Current assets RBEE
Repossessed assets & 0] & B 9,294,034 8,859,436
Loan receivables JERE K 13 957,129,203 597,801,755
Trade and other receivables B 5 kA M U GRIE 14 27,285,727 21,976,400
Cash and cash equivalents RERFSFEY 15 49,196,938 46,877,205
1,042,905,902 675,514,796
Current liabilities HREBEE

Accruals and other payables JEETE A & E AN FRIE 17 6,585,458 5,870,839
Bank loans and overdrafts SRITERNEX 16 76,390,858 125,522,021
Obligations under finance leases mEHERE 18 207,050 199,629
Loans from ultimate holding company ~ S&HIRA T2 ER 20 92,500,000 86,900,000
Current taxation BNHAFR 18 23(a) 6,065,360 8,912,066
Other loans HER 19 151,840,000 =
333,588,726 227,404,555
Net current assets REBEEFSE 709,317,176 448,110,241
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABAR 791,560,092 527,256,102

Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Debt securities issued BEETEBES 22 124,454,079 74,646,273
Obligations under finance leases RO E M SRR 18 511,974 719,024
124,966,053 75,365,297
NET ASSETS EEFH 666,594,039 451,890,805
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AN AN
R E B AR R &
As at 29 February 2016 R=Z—XFE=_F=+ANA
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )

Note 2016 2015
B 5T —E-RE —E—RF
$ $

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR #E 24
Capital A&z 21,200,000 4,500,000
Reserves (e 645,394,039 447,390,805
TOTAL EQUITY EEemE 666,594,039 451,890,805

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
May 2016

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREAZ= 54 )
Director =%

The notes on pages 68 to 124 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

i A el 3L 4
MEEZEFH XK
For the year ended 29 February 2016 HE—Z—XF-_A=-+hAILLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7ToIR)

share
capital/
Paid-in capital Share Capital Other  Retained
Note A&,/ premium reserve reserve profits Total
fizE BEfER R RE ERfE Hitbfdfe REBER @t
$ $ $ $ $ $
At 1 March 2014 RZB-I&E
=A—H 4,000,000 85,625,004 44,962,406 12,001,100 177,836,249 324,424,759
Profit and total comprehensive  FERF| R 2EBA
income for the year ok = = = — 80,091,046 80,091,046
Share issue under placing, net  REECERITI D
of issuing expenses (EMBETER) 24(c)(ii) 500,000 69,825,000 = — — 70,325,000
Final dividend approved in S E—EEERATR
respect of the previous year  FRIR(T 2 KERE
and paid during the year 24(b)(ii) — (12,150,000) = = — (12,150,000)
Interim dividend declared and ~ RERZIRRIEN 2
paid during the year H ke 24(b)(i) — (10,800,000) = = — (10,800,000)
At 28 February 2015 and R-B-EF
1 March 2015 ZR=tNH
R-E-1F
=A—-H 4,500,000 132,500,004 44,962,406 12,001,100 257,927,295 451,890,805
Profit and total comprehensive  FE&FI K2
income for the year Nk = = = — 91,365,939 91,365,939
Share issue under placing, net  RIEECEZTTIR LD
of issuing expenses (ENRETER) 24(c)ii) 800,000 152,217,295 = = — 153,017,295
Final dividend approved in o F—EEEHEY
respect of the previous year NERRE 2 R
and paid during the year eSS 24(b)iii) — (15,900,000) — — — (15,900,000)
Interim dividend declared and ~ RERER LK 2
paid during the year hER S 24(b)(i) — (13,780,000) = = — (13,780,000)
Bonus issue ALMRET 24(c)iil) 15,900,000 (15,900,000) = = — (10,800,000)
At 29 February 2016 RZB-RE
o 1= 21,200,000 239,137,299 44,962,406 12,001,100 349,293,234 666,594,039
The notes on pages 68 to 124 form part of these financial FO8E124B 2 Wik MBI FHHRE 2 — 25 -
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRNER

For the year ended 29 February 2016 HZ=—Z—XF_A=-+ABILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 72517R)

Note 2016 2015
B & —E—RF —E—ARF
$ $
Operating activities REEK
Profit before taxation RSB A 109,367,871 96,125,260
Adjustments for: A THIFBEELFE
Depreciation e 488,187 606,290
Bank interest income SRITHRBULA (821) (807)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - WE R&HE
and equipment =Dk 2,264 76,011
Finance costs R E KA 22,658,543 11,526,585
Charge for/(release of) impairment loss 1k /(B E) fE U & X
on loan receivables ZBEEE 491,384 (282,348)
Operating profit before changes in & E&E &8 8 a1 2 K2 HF
working capital 133,007,428 108,050,991
Increase in repossessed assets Al [B] 5 EE 1 N (434,598) (929,896)
Increase in loan receivables JE I E FR I8 N (362,587,489) (180,224,729)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 K E th & U FRIE1E AN (5,982,059) (9,799,839)
Increase in accruals and other payables — fE&TE A & H b fE 0B
0 714,619 886,825
Cash used in operations ¥£EFTAERS (235,282,099) (82,016,648)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREENEH (20,898,437) (11,898,141)
Net cash used in operating activities R&ZEFAESTE (256,180,536) (93,914,789)
Investing activities REX
Bank interest received 2 U ERER 1T F & 821 807
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWZ  HEKEZEZ
and equipment PS5 IR 3,800 68,724
Payment for the purchase of property,  BE¥X¥ - MERREZ
plant and equipment FIE (100,118) (237,400)
Net cash used in investing activities REZKFAAESTE (95,497) (167,869)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERTRER

For the year ended 29 February 2016 HE—Z—XF-_A=-+hAILLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T5IR)

Note 2016 2015
B 5E —E—RF —RHE
$ $

Financing activities RE K
Increase in loans from the ultimate REER AT Z EFIE

holding company 5,600,000 6,400,000
Proceeds from share issue under placing, 1RIEECEFTEEITAS 2 FT15

net of issuing expenses HIB(EBREITER) 153,017,295 70,325,000
Proceeds from debt securities issued, net E?é‘fﬂﬁ‘% B 5 < FTiSsIE

of issuing expenses (BEHRETER) 49,750,000 74,625,000
Finance costs paid EARTEE KA (22,571,982) (11,479,950)
Proceeds from other loans HAME R 2 TS 3IA 151,840,000 =
(Repayment of)/proceeds from bank loans (8% )R17E X /fETTETAZ

ez (40,729,660) 10,323,584

Dividends paid B (29,680,000) (22,950,000)
Capital element of finance lease rentals B RMERNHEE 2 ERLH

paid (199,629) (171,583)
Interest element of finance lease rentals EffEEEMR LN E 2 F 82D

paid (28,755) (25,362)
Net cash generated from financing FEEXKMEERSFE

activities 266,997,269 127,046,68
Net increase in cash and cash RERBSESEYIEMFHE

equivalents 10,721,236 32,964,031
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzRERRASEEY

beginning of year 38,263,348 5,299,317
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZBEERASEEY

end of year 15 48,984,584 38,263,348

The notes on pages 68 to 124 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 85 ¥R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 53 74A f5BAZE 5 -

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 June 2012. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in secured financing business
in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans. The
shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) since 12 March 2013.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A)

(B)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further
details of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(d) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 29 February 2016 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

©

(D)

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars ("HKD"). They are prepared on the historical cost
basis.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the group:

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand the
definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the group’s
related party disclosures as the group does not obtain
key management personnel services from management
entities.

The revised and new accounting standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
accounting year ended 29 February 2016 are set out in
note 32.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 85 ¥R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 53 74A f5BAZE 5 -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(E)

(F)

USE OF ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments is recognised in profit or loss on an
accruals basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(F) REVENUE RECOGNITION (cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Interest income (cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating the interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest
income based on the original terms of the financial
assets is discontinued.

Fee income

Fee income is recognised when the corresponding
service is provided, except where the fee is charged
to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature.
In these cases, the fee is recognised as income in
the accounting period in which the costs or risk
are incurred or is accounted for as interest income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(F)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (cont'd)
(iii) Disposal of repossessed assets

Disposal gain is recognised when the buyer of the

repossessed assets has accepted the goods and the

related risks and rewards of ownership.
(iv) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payment receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

(G) SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered. An investment in a
subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flow and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(H) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i)

(i)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into
different categories at inception, depending on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired or the
liabilities were incurred. The categories are: loans
and receivables and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at
fair value, which normally will be equal to the
transaction price plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset or issuance of the financial liability.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
using settlement date accounting.

Classification

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than (1) those
that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the
near term, which are classified as held for trading;
(2) those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates as at fair value through profit or loss or as
available-for-sale; or (3) those where the Group may
not recover substantially all of its initial investment,
other than because of credit deterioration, which
will be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and
receivables mainly comprise pawn loans, mortgages
and unsecured loans. Pawn loans are loans provided
whereby personal property such as gold, jewellery
and diamonds, watches and consumer electronic
products are used as collateral for the security of the
loans. Mortgages are loans secured by real estates
and unsecured loans are loans without collateral.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (see note 2(k)).

Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 53 74A f5BAZE 5 -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’'D)
(H) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or where the financial asset

together with substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

() LEASED ASSETS

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(j). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 2(k). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

U]

0)

LEASED ASSETS (cont’d)

(ii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss, if any
(see note 2(k)). Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the unexpired

term of lease or 5 years

— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

(K)

(i)

Financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events which has an impact on the future cash
flows on the assets that can be estimated reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the borrower.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is
reduced to the estimated recoverable amount by
means of a charge to profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of loans and receivables,
which are measured at amortised cost, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against loans
and receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that borrower
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(K) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets).
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted
if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for impairment losses consists of
two components: individual impairment allowances,
and collective impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, and collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment. Assets that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment
by grouping together financial assets with similar
risk characteristics.

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value
of cash flows which are expected to be received
discounted at the original effective interest rate. In
estimating these cash flows, management make
judgements about the borrower’s financial situation
and the net realisable value of any underlying
collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (cont’d)

(K)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Loans and receivables (cont’d)

In assessing the need for collective impairment
allowances, management uses statistical modelling
and considers historical trends of factors such as
credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, and
economic factors. In order to estimate the required
allowance, the Group makes assumptions both to
define the way the Group models inherent losses
and to determine the required input parameters,
based on historical experience and current economic
conditions.

Where there is no reasonable prospect of recovery,
the loan and the related interest receivables are
written off.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that other assets may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA

2

LA TTEIR)
EXRETEE(E
(K) EBEERMEGHE)
(i) Z=EEZEE)
EMRERNIE (&)
REHEEEH2EHBRERERE
B BEEEEMBRTEETN - X
EZRZHEARZBEBE - flm(E
EEx HAMAR SPEERE
ERE - BAFTAHERE  ~A%HE
AR BB E &5 & B AR B
HERR - AEEAKREREELEES
BZHhAREBERBZBARE -
MEESEKSREE - AIERK
FE W AE A A B T LA
(i) RftEE

KEARRRINAKR 2 EHBERN
BEHREEHTURE  UBEERS
B RBREMEE A BERE R
AIE R 2 BEBE TN EFERA
BEERD °

MFEEMZEFLRR - AIGETZE
EZAREEE EEEZKREE
HeERKE R RERRE
B8 o

— AREEEFHE
BEAKRDSHEDEEEFR
HEREBEEMET LIRSS °
A REER - 2Rkt
ERMSEHEREEEERE
B 255 T R ¥ 4 2 B Al T
AR AT RRRSREN
REABE - WEELEEL
ARBBINEMEEZRER
A BIAREBYELRERA
ZERNEEMAR(BNReESL
BO)BEAKEEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(K)

(L)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (cont'd)
(ii) Other assets (cont’d)

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.

—  Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

REPOSSESSED ASSETS

In the recovery of impaired loan receivables granted under
the Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Chapter 166 of the laws of
Hong Kong), the Group takes possession of the collateral
assets from the customers. This possession takes place
once a loan becomes overdue, subject to a grace period
granted at the discretion of the Group in certain cases.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the amortised
cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, which is generally below the net realisable
value of the repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the
assets, the related loans and advances together with the
related impairment allowances, if any, are derecognised
from the statement of financial position. Subsequently,
repossessed assets are carried at the lower of the amount
initially recognised or net realisable value and are therefore
written down if and when the net realisable value falls
to below the carrying amount of the asset. The excess/
shortfall of the net proceeds over the carrying amount of
the repossessed assets is recognised as a gain/loss upon
the disposal of the assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(M)

(N)

(0)

(P)

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated cash flow statement.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected
to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(P)

Q)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to business combinations, or items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 53 74A f5BAZE 5 -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Q)

Income tax (cont’d)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary difference support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Q)

INCOME TAX (cont’d)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— In the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— In the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  The same taxable entity; or

— Different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(R)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as defined
contribution schemes. The employer’s monthly
contributions to the scheme are at a maximum of
5% of each employee’s monthly salary, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $25,000, or
$30,000 after 1 June 2014.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to profit or
loss of the Group for the year concerned and the
assets of all these schemes are held separately from
those of the Group.

Long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed
the required number of years of service to the Group
in order to be eligible for long service payments
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in
the event of the termination of their employment.
The Group is liable to make such payments in the
event that such a termination of employment meets
the circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of probable
future long service payments based on the best
estimate of the probable future outflow of resources
which have been earned by the employees from
their service to the Group at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(S)
(a)

RELATED PARTIES

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx BEIEREIN » LAETTIIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARGTHEXE)
(CONT’'D)
(T) SEGMENT REPORTING (T) 2HBHE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment BEREPRE Y LESIT LR ELIE

item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of businesses
and geographical locations.

B Z%%ﬁﬁﬁémﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁélﬂimﬁﬁ B
BERHUDEERTAKREERBER
Mo AP B R IR 2 AR R P R A

Individually material operating segments are not BERHRETS BRIESFABEMUS
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the A RS RBENE  EET

segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and

FIHEE - EFEMNEE - DIHEMKIE
HERBAATEAREERRCHEER

services, the nature of production processes, the type of M THEARMEALES) BT RTE
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the o EERIE AT ‘@ﬁ}% NE%A F

products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

7(*5“ R - BIRETRE -

3 REVENUE 3 Uk
The principal activities of the Group are the granting of pawn REE T BREAEESRNEYE B RIRE
loans and mortgage loans in Hong Kong. IR o

Revenue represents interest income earned on pawn loans and

Wasig S B R RSB E R Z 78

mortgage loans, and results on disposal of repossessed assets. WA UREEEKEEE Y 2E - £ - 1%
The amount of each nature of business of revenue recognised & ISR S ST
in revenue during the year are as follows:
2016 2015
—NE —RE
$ $
Revenue from pawn loan business HMEERER K
— Interest earned on loan receivables — B E ST HREL 2 I 8 61,876,603 57,656,085
— Disposal of repossessed assets — HERLWEEE (814,130) 3,383,065
Total revenue from pawn loan business ~ MEERXH 2= 000 61,062,473 61,039,150
Revenue from mortgage loan business RIS EFEH 2 Wak
— Interest earned on loan receivables — EEFRPTHRELZ 7 8 125,595,171 85,477,569
Total A&t 186,657,644 146,516,719
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

TURNOVER (CONT'D) 3 sz (&)
Cost of repossessed assets disposed for the year ended 29 HE-_Z—XR"F-_AZ-TNALFE BEE
February 2016 amounted to $60 million (2015: $56 million). & Bl & E 2 B AN £60,000,000t( ZE—F
% . 56,000,0007T) °
The Group's customer base is diversified and includes only REBCZEFERZ T BERE—RBER(Z
one customer (2015: one customer) with whom transactions TE—HF: —Z)EAEFBETBOAANEFRIK
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenues. During the H10%2ZRG - RBE_E—XR"F_A=+n1
year ended 29 February 2016, revenues from interest earned AIFEE el EEFRBIEMER
on mortgage loan receivables from this customer, including FIRM R Bz Wam(BEREAEEE ME
interest earned from entities which are known to the Group WERPZHRBESIZERZ 2 M EWA)D A
to be under common control with this customer, amounted to 32,500,000;( =ZZF—FF : 21,700,0007T)
approximately $32.5 million (2015: $21.7 million).
SEGMENT REPORTING 4 DEHE
The Group has one reportable segment, which is the provision NEFEF B 2MH I - PPRBHIREHIE
of secured financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn WEEET BB EERRIRBIEMER -
loans and mortgage loans. Therefore, no additional reportable E - e 25|%BINa] 2 R 2 LR E R o
segment and geographical information have been presented.
OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5 HikzmREMEIEFREE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
$ $
Other revenue Hi iz
Rental income GEAL N 1,292,000 1,244,150
Interest earned on unsecured loans EERE R FE 248,358 685,969
Credit related fee income EEREERKRA 2,845,607 7,564,330
Bank interest income RITHBHA 821 807
Others Hth 274,882 847,519
4,661,668 10,342,775
Other net loss Hih g5 855
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREREY
plant and equipment b (2,264) (76,011)
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B 85 ¥R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx BEIEREIN » LAETTIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 KRFBANEFR
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BB R T &R A TR IBEEE -
2016 2015
—E-XE —ET—NF
$ $
(a) Finance costs (a) WERAE
Finance charges on obligations MEHEAEC RMEER
under finance leases e N 28,755 25,362
Interest on loans from the ultimate REEIER A B 2 BERA B
holding company 4,980,083 3,656,009
Interest on bank loans and RITERRBELFE
overdrafts 5,344,039 5,728,873
Interest on other loans H B F 8 6,537,332 =
Interest on debt securities issued BETEEEHFZF A 5,768,334 2,116,341
22,658,543 11,526,585
(b) Staff costs (b) BIAE
Salaries and other benefits e kEMEFR 17,295,809 16,424,715
Directors’ remuneration (note 9) EE502 (KFE9) 7,471,434 5,071,700
Contributions to defined TEREHIRETE) 2 HEK
contribution scheme 505,021 546,882
Charge for/(release of) provision for e/ (BE) KRS
long service payment SR 196,487 (10,893)
25,468,751 22,032,404
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 6 BERBANEF(EF)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: (cont’d) BB F T EHBR AT S IBRED  (8)
2016 2015
—®-AF 2%
$ $
(c) Other operating expenses () HMKEMX
Premises and equipment expenses Z:;@%%%Z:@ﬁﬁ
excluding depreciation: B
— rental of premises — MEHEE 11,384,541 10,551,388
— maintenance, repairs and — RE - BIERHAM
others 1,369,515 939,040
_..12754056 11.490,428
Auditors’ remuneration 2 6 B & 1,020,000 880,000
Depreciation (note 12) FrEF12) 488,187 606,290
Advertising expenses BERZ 9,865,057 6,235,202
Legal and professional fees FENEEER 2,918,428 2,049,449
Others Hb 6,284,771 6,120,213
_....20.576,443 15,891,154
58,799,250 49,413,986

7 IMPAIRMENTLOSSESONLOANRECEIVABLES 7 EWEHZZREEIE

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—RHF
$ $
Impairment losses on loan receivables EWE R RIEEE
— Individual impairment losses — RMEZ (R, 2 B
(released)/charged to profit or loss  JR{EEE (FIFE13(a))
(note 13(a)) (38,255) 12,180
—  Collective impairment losses charged/ — MRz, /(B E) 2 B8
(released) to profit or loss (note 13(a)) B EIE (FT5E13(a)) 529,639 (294,528)
491,384 (282,348)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx BEIEREIN » LAETTIIR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 MNEEZTHEWARZFIEBH
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(A) TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (A) REE2XEWRARZBIEE :
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REPRESENTS:
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hHF
$ $
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIi%iE — FEREH
Provision for the year (note 23(a)) \EFE%%(WE\B@)) 18,016,836 15,800,931
Under-provision in respect of prior years B FEREETE 34,895 198,020
18,051,731 15,998,951
Deferred tax ERER IE
Origination and reversal of temporary ~ E4 MEEIHRIEZ5
differences (note 23(b)) (BF5E23(b)) (49,799) 35,263
Tax expense IR 2 18,001,932 16,034,214
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is - RNFEEBNESHEEDILBEANMGE
calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated ERTETN2165% (ZF—H%F : 16.5%)
assessable profits for the year, taking into account a HE o U FBEEEEEFEERNTHEBFR
reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR Government T hEE-RFRUFELRTE XK=
of 75% of the tax payable for the year of assessment HE A BT 75% » BA20,0000 8 ER(=ZF
2015-16 subject to a maximum reduction of $20,000 for —Hh%F I LA20,000t A LR ERELT=F
each business (2015: a maximum reduction of $20,000 —NFE—RAFGMEFEYEAEE—_T—H
was granted for the year of assessment 2014-15 and was FERERN) -
taken into account in calculating the provision for 2015).
(B) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND (B) RERABEHEZHEMXHEGTER
ACCOUNTING PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: HERIT -
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—RF
$ $
Profit before taxation B B¢ B Al 109,367,871 96,125,260
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  FRELATEF 2 B FE KA
calculated at the rates applicable to (REEERET 2
profits in the entities concerned BHAMEFE) 18,045,696 15,860,668
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue JEFE R N R 2 B % S 22 (135) (131)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Z:?J?DfﬁfaﬁiZ%%f%??% 35,820 55,657
Under-provision in prior years BAEFERETR 34,895 198,020
Others HAf (114,344) (80,000)
Actual tax expense ERHIBERX 18,001,932 16,034,214
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 29 February 2016
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9 EEME

ZEENERIBEBTERTIEAIFE3I83(NIER A A
(FEEEFEER)RAIFE 25 HENT -

BE-ZE—XR"E-“HA=-thRALEE

ABTTEIR)

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and benefits in to Mandatory
Directors’ kind  Discretionary  Provident Fund
fees  F& - EHR bonuses ) Total
EEHe ENFE BETA DESHR -
$ $ $ $ $
Executive directors HTEE
Chan Kai Ho Edward BRE% = 1,310,934 4,000,000 18,000 5,328,934
Chan Ying Yu ) — 381,333 = 16,000 397,333
Chan Chart Man BR% X — 381,333 — — 381,333
Chan Mei Fong ES = 675,834 = 18,000 675,834
Non-executive director FHTES
Chan Kai Kow Macksion BRGR 167,500 = = = 167,500
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Chan Wing Lee BRK A 167,500 = = = 167,500
Leung Shiu Ki 2k 167,500 = = = 167,500
Yip Ngai % 167,500 = = = 167,500
Total &t 670,000 2,749,434 4,000,000 52,000 7,471,434
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx BEIEREIN » LAETTIIR)

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (CONT’D)
Year ended 28 February 2015

9 EEME(E)
BE-_Z—HF_A-+NBLLEE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and benefits in to Mandatory
Directors’ kind  Discretionary Provident Fund
fees  H& o EER bonuses gL Total
EEHe ENFIE miERa AESHR @t
$ $ $ $ $
Executive directors HITES
Chan Kai Ho Edward BRI — 1,127,600 2,050,000 17,250 3,194,850
Chan Ying Yu R = 308,000 = 13,600 321,600
Chan Chart Man BR% X = 308,000 = — 308,000
Chan Mei Fong FRER - 630,000 - 17,250 647,250
Non-executive director FBTES
Chan Kai Kow Macksion BRAEK 150,000 = = = 150,000
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Chan Wing Lee Bk A 150,000 - - - 150,000
Leung Shiu Ki P 150,000 - - = 150,000
Yip Ngai 3 150,000 = = = 150,000
Total gt 600,000 2,373,600 2,050,000 48,100 5,071,700

No directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2015: Nil).

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable by the
Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
as set out in note 10 below as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2015:
Nil).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 & SHMA L
hEaBeRFMALTTFERA(ZTE—0F MW
HIREE  WEZFHRMEOWE - 8T =
BEANL(ZE—REF : ZR)2FMETENT :

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2015:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining
three (2015: three) are as follows:

2016 2015

—EB—XRE —E—hF

$ $

Salaries and other emoluments o S H At 7 B 1,864,610 1,712,425

Discretionary bonuses B IETEAL 875,139 225,746
Contributions to Mandatory Provident &I £ R & & K

Fund 52,543 53,126

2,792,292 1,991,297

The emoluments of the three (2015: three) individuals with the

FZ=H(CE-RF  ZR)ReFMALZH

highest emoluments are within the following bands: FHAELA T 8RR -
2016 2015
—E-AF —T-RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AER
$Nil — $1,000,000 Z L% 1,000,0007T 2 3
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,00175%1,500,0007C 1 _
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 53 74A f5BAZE 5 -
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 29 February 2016 of $91,365,939
(2015: $80,091,046) and the weighted average number of
2,096,612,000 (2015: 2,039,452,000*) ordinary shares of the
Company in issue during the year calculated as follows:

LA TTEIR)

BRAER

EREXEF
ERERABRDIBRERNRREZBREEN
HE-_ZEZ2—XNE-_A-+NhBILEERF
91,365,939;t( — & — B % : 80,091,046
T) A RFEARAKXDR DT LR MR
15 $12,096,612,00008( — T — f & :
2,039,452,000* %) 5T & - T -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2 3 IR HIRE S 15 &
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Number of Number of
shares shares
B A i1 Ex B
‘000 ‘000
5 18
Issued ordinary share at 1 March R=ZA—HBzZBEETEER 450,000 400,000
Effect of share issue under placing RIRREEMBETRD 2HE
(note 24(c)(iv)) (B EE24(c)(iv)) 56,612 49,452
Effect of bonus issue ARBEIToHE 1,590,000 1,590,000
Weighted average number of ordinary RZA=Z+hB /ZA=+NH
shares at 29 February/28 February BRI T HE 2,096,612 2,039,452

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there was no
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both years.

*  Amount for the year ended 28 February 2015 adjusted for
the bonus shares issued on 18 August 2015
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 9% BERRE
(A) ¥ BERRE

Leasehold Furniture Motor
improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
HEWREE RERKE B FeE
$ $ $ $
Cost: B
At 1 March 2014 RZE—NFE=A—H 4,116,179 2,795,581 1,338,000 8,249,760
Additions ANE — 37,400 1,247,617 1,285,017
Disposals e — — (830,000) (830,000)
At 28 February 2015 RZT—RHF
=A=TNR A1 2832981 1755617 8,704,777 _
Accumulated depreciation: ZFHFE :
At 1 March 2014 RZE—MFE=A—H 3,755,458 2,210,654 992,165 6,958,277
Charge for the year FRZH 136,837 247,769 221,684 606,290
Written back on disposal HE R — — (539,500) (539,500)
At 28 February 2015 RZT—h%F
=A=TNH 389229 2458425 = 6744e 10251067
Net book value: REFE
At 28 February 2015 RZE-—RF
—“A-t+AR 223,884 374,558 1,081,268 1,679,710
Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
improvements fixtures vehicles Total
HEMERE BEREE AE @zt
$ $ $ $
Cost: BRAR
At 1 March 2015 R-_Z—RF=A—H 4,116,179 2,832,981 1,755,617 8,704,777
Additions NE 38,300 61,818 — 100,118
Disposal HE (374,292) (152,184) — (526,476)
At 29 February 2016 RZT—RF
=A=ThH 3780087 2742615 1755617 8278419
Accumulated depreciation: RFHHTE :
At 1 March 2015 R_ZE—HF=A—H 3,892,295 2,458,423 674,349 7,025,067
Charge for the year FAZH 87,764 150,900 249,523 488,187
Written back on disposal & R el (371,142) (149,270) — (520,412)
At 29 February 2016 RZZE—RF
=A=ThA (3608917 2460053 923872 6,992,842
Net book value: BREFE !
At 29 February 2016 RZZE—RF
—A-thA 171,270 282,562 831,745 1,285,577
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

(B) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT HELD UNDER
FINANCE LEASES

The Group leases motor vehicle under finance lease
expiring until 2019. At the end of the lease term the
Group has the option to purchase the leased vehicle at a
price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. None of
the lease includes contingent rentals.

13 LOAN RECEIVABLES

12 V¥ BEKRRKREE)

B) BERMEVNEFEAEINL BER
EAg
AEERE-_E-NEERIBERE
MESRSE RASHERE  A£EH
BEEAEE Y BEEEEAES
BERERERARS -

13 EWRER

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
$ $
Pawn loans HE TR 141,755,620 124,239,910
Mortgages ZIH R E R 890,778,603 543,188,423
Unsecured loans R E R 250,000 2,768,401
Gross loan receivables FEWE R B R $1,032,784,223 670,196,734
Less: Impairment allowance (note 13(a)) & = JAERE (HiFE13(a))
— Individually assessed — {ERIFFE (29,285) (67,540)
—  Collectively assessed — BRIV (789,372) (259,733)
. (818,657) | (327,273).
o . 1,031,965,566 669,869,461
Current portion included under current ~ ZIRRBIEER T 2 BIEIEE 7
assets (957,129,203) (597,801,755)
Amounts due after one year included FIRERBEER TR —F1&
under non-current assets EIHAFRIE 74,836,363 72,067,706

(A) MOVEMENT IN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

(A) REBREZH

2016 2015
“E-AF ZZ-R%
Individual Collective Total Individual Collective Total
{85l i H {15 BE Bt
$ $ $ $ $ $
At 1 March W=R—H 67,540 259,733 327,273 55,360 554,261 609,621
Impairment losses (released)/ 7Bz (&) /K
charged to profit ZREBE
o loss (note 7) (RzE7) (38,255) 529,639 491,384 12,180 (294528)  (282,348)
At 29 February/ RZAZ+nB/
28 February —R=TNH 29,285 789,372 818,657 67,540 259,733 327,273
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13 LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(B)

AGEING ANALYSIS

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 55 R 2R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

13 EWER(E)
BB 2 AT

Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due

date.

REDMDERANEHARR -

Pawn loans Mortgages Unsecured loans Total
BEEN RIBEA BHEAER #at
$ $ $ $
29 February 2016 —E-RE
ZA=+hH
Neither past due nor impaired &8 skiRE 138,989,320 787,874,540 250,000 927,113,860
Less than 1 month past due  #EIDR11EA 2,244,550 97,069,271 — 99,313,821
1 to less than 3 months BEEAZLR3EA
past due 521,750 5,834,792 — 6,356,542
141,755,620 890,778,603 250,000  1,032,784,223
28 February 2015 —E-h#¥
ZA=t+NH
Neither past due nor impaired £ B3ak 5 119,624,960 514,874,411 250,000 634,749,371
Less than 1 month past due  #EHIDA11EA 3,758,100 21,264,012 1,918,441 26,940,553
1 to less than 3 months BEHERZLR3EA
past due 856,850 6,000,000 599,960 7,456,810
3 to less than 6 months BE3E A =L R6(EA
past due — — — —
6 months to less than 1 year  #EA6{EAEVH1F
past due — 1,050,000 — 1,050,000
124,239,910 543,188,423 2,768,401 670,196,734

Of these mortgage loans which have been past due
for one month or above, the respective valuations of
the collaterals can fully cover the outstanding balances

K-E—AF=A=1+NBE ZEHH

— @A A EZZIBEM
HRbEEAERENZE

EX&EBEZE
ERZAREE

and the related interest receivables (see note 14(b)) of
these loans as at 29 February 2016. In respect of the
mortgage loans which have been past due for less than
1 month, the amounts mainly represent occasional
delay in repayment and are not indication of significant
deterioration of credit quality of these mortgage loans. As
such, no individual impairment allowances were made in
respect of the mortgage loans which have been past due
as at 29 February 2016.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
note 25(a).

RERR R ARRE IR B (R M E14(b) - B
BRI MEA ZZBERERIEE
HRNBEEEERAER YRR
ERBENERCEFEEZRBEREL
At R —_FT—-—R"RF-_A-_tHAAZ
EHEBMRBEREN  ~EELEIE
HAERREREAE

BRAKEEERRE-FFEHIRN
BfEE25(a) ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx BEIEREIN » LAETTIIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 EZRHEMEWRIER
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
$ $
Trade receivables B 5 REWRIA 942,500 163,035
Interest receivables & A2 16,803,555 15,071,006
17,746,055 15,234,041
Deposits and payments in advance Z& RIEMNFKIE 15,208,392 11,738,347
Others Hth 101,500 101,500
33,055,947 27,073,888
Non-current portion of deposits and JIRIERBEEE MRS K
payments in advance included under B RIA 2 FERN R E
non-current assets (5,770,220) (5,097,488)
Amounts due within one year included ~ FIRREIEEIR TR —4F
under current assets A E|HAFIE 27,285,727 21,976,400
Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date of B rE S IE g =R B se0K N E H o
billing. All of the trade and other receivables are not impaired B AERBEEE N Z 5 & H b el EoE
and expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within G BB 5 REMEWZIEL ARE 8
one year, apart from those included under non-current assets. RN —FRKEERAERY - BEAEEZ
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note B — SIS H Y M EE25(@) ©
25(a).
(A) AGEING ANALYSIS OF TRADE RECEIVABLES (A) EZEWRIEZRER DT
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither WEERNXKEBHERALBRELES
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is FEWCRIERREC AT AR -
as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hE
$ $
Neither past due nor impaired 1% A e BR SlOR (B 390,000 79,035
Less than 1 month past due B HA DA 1 A — —
1 to less than 3 months past due @ H311E A = DR31E A = 84,000
3 to less than 6 months past due  #H3{E A = >R 61E A 552,500 —
942,500 163,035
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(B)

14 EZRHEMEBEWRIE(E)

(A) AGEING ANALYSIS OF TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont’d) (A) EZEWFTEZERB D (&)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired N7 48 360 HA 5RO (B 2 FE U Rk T B % A T
related to a wide range of customers for whom there SEHRR AR EEAR -
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate £ 180 BB N0 AR (8 2 8 UK TR B R A B
to two independent customers (2015: an independent AEEERTABERBZBITF(ZF
customer) that have a good track record with the Group —hF: —RBUEF)EW  ZHEH
and over 90% (2015: 100%) of the balance was settled FBBI0% (T —FHF : 100% )R E
subsequently. BAEL
AGEING ANALYSIS OF INTEREST RECEIVABLES (B) FEUURIZ ke D 4T
The ageing analysis of interest receivables that are neither b % 18 75 3% B B8 4 4% /5 b 3R (B2 FE MK
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is FlE DT T -
as follows:
Pawn loans Mortgages Unsecured loans Total
HEER RIBEA BEREN st
$ $ $ $
29 February 2016 —E-Rf
ZA=thA
Neither past due nor impaired ~ BEBHRE 10,033,067 4,815,239 3,103 14,851,409
Less than 1 month past due BELRE A 392,796 1,360,654 — 1,753,450
1 to less than 3 months past due B 18 A ZE DR
3fE A 109,567 89,129 — 198,696
10,535,430 6,265,022 3,103 16,803,555
28 February 2015 “E-hF
—A=t+NR
Neither past due nor impaired ~ #E &R R E 9,457,849 3,979,726 3,036 13,440,611
Less than 1 month past due BED R {E A 657,668 520,837 60,120 1,238,625
1 to less than 3 months past due #EHI1EA =R
3EA 179,939 73,036 46,451 299,426
3 to less than 6 months past due #HI3{EAZ DR
61 7 — — — —
6 months to less than 1 year BHeEAZ IR
past due 15 — 92,344 = 92,344
10,295,456 4,665,943 109,607 15,071,006
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 RERBELEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: RekBEBYEE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—hHF
$ $
Cash in hand FER S 4,870,099 5,974,014
Cash at banks RITES 44,326,839 40,903,191
Cash and cash equivalents in the REBURARZAESRRESE
statements of financial position =47 49,196,938 46,877,205
Bank overdrafts (note 16) RITEZ (FIsE16) (212,354) (8,613,857)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REFEHERERZHAE R
consolidated cash flow statement HeEEY 48,984,584 38,263,348
16 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 16 RITERREX
The details of the bank loans and overdrafts were as follows: RITERRBEXFBENOT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—HF
$ $
Unsecured bank overdrafts (note 16(a)) B RITEX (Mk16(@) 212,354 8,613,857
Bank loans, secured (note 16(b)) RITER - BEM(FFEE16(b)) 49,076,040 101,175,000
Bank loans, unsecured (note 16(c)) RITER - EIEIR(HIEE16(c) 27,102,464 15,733,164
76,178,504 116,908,164
Total bank loans and overdrafts — RITER KB B —
repayable within 1 year or on demand ~ R 1FRAFIZERKER 76,390,858 125,522,021
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

16 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONT’D)

(a)

At 29 February 2016, unsecured bank overdraft facilities
of $21,500,000 (2015: $22,500,000) was provided to the
subsidiaries and utilised to the extent as disclosed above.

At 29 February 2016, uncommitted secured revolving
bank loan facilities of the lower of $125.3 million (2015:
$180 million) or a certain percentage of the aggregate
principal amount of the mortgage loan receivables of the
subsidiaries which are then sub-charged/sub-mortgaged
to the banks were obtained. The tenor for the facilities
ranged from one month, two months, three months or six
months as selected by the subsidiaries. As at 29 February
2016, the available uncommitted banking facilities
after taking into consideration of the drawdown was
approximately $nil (2015: $5.7 million). The secured bank
loan outstanding balance of $49.1 million (2015: $101.2
million) were secured by loan receivables with a carrying
value of approximately $63.1 million (2015: $138 million).

At 29 February 2016, unsecured bank loan facilities of
$27,102,464 (2015: $15,733,164) were provided to the
Company and the subsidiaries and utilised to the extent
as disclosed above.

During the year, the Group had fulfilled all the financial
covenants, if any, under the Group’s banking facilities and
all banking facilities were guaranteed by the Company.

17 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

B 55 R 2R B

ABTTEIR)

16 MITEMRREX(HE)

(a)

R-ZE—XREF-_A=-t+hB B
A) ¥R £21,500,000c( — T — A F :
22,500,000 T) K BIRITE L RLE - W
BEREXEECHAEEERNEBR

RZZE—RE-_A=-t+hB WBAT
MEEALZERBRBRETERME -
& % £125,300,000c( — & — 7 & -
180,000,0007T ) sk 7% E MY B 2 7] K &
RAR KR T IRIT Z FEUUR B IR B X
ReBBAETEALZEESE - @&
ZBREAE—@EA MEA - =@ Ak~
AATE  AZSHMBARIETE - RN
T-—RNEZAZThB: FRERERR
RIE - SR EABRITRENS
Z(=ZZF—HF :5,700,0007T) ° %
£ 4 %8 /549,100,000t ( —ZE— R F
101,200,0007T) 2 B MR ITE KR E
B ABRTEEA A63,100,000t (==
—F £ : 138,000,0007T ) Z FE & FK1E
I o

RZFBE—ARF_A=+NB  XARAM
BB AR ERM27,102,464T(—F—H
F 1 15,733,16470 ) 4K 1 R 17 B 3 @k
& UEREXHESEEEER -

FAR AEBEEBRTAKBERARITA
BRTZMBRHE(WMA) » MABIRT
MEHRARRHELER -

17 EstEAREMENSRIE

2016 2015

S S

$ $

Accrued interest expenses e A B 2,257,665 1,234,220
Accrued expenses FEETE R X 2,268,683 1,921,909
Provision for long services payment KRB REE 916,540 720,053
Other payable and deposit received H i FEARUOB K B WEUR & 1,142,570 1,994,657
6,585,458 5,870,839

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

BRI ERREMENRERERN —F ARG
ARERSWASIREREE -
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18 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 18

The Group had obligations under finance leases repayable for

motor vehicle as follows:

LA TTEIR)

mEHERE
AEBREEZ AERERERENT -

19

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-nE
Present value of Present value of
the minimum Total minimum the minimum  Total minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHEE REHE HEHEE HEHE
RERE RIEME FBEHE FURBE
$ $ $ $
Within 1 year 15/ 207,050 228,384 199,629 228,384
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 /&{E5F A 511,974 532,896 719,024 761,280
719,024 761,280 918,653 989,664
Less: Total future interest B RRFERAXEE

expenses (42,256) (71,011)
Present value of lease obligations fA E &£ & 719,024 918,653

OTHER LOANS

During the year ended 29 February 2016, the Group
obtained uncommitted secured revolving loan facilities from
an independent third party. The limit of the facilities are the
lower of $300 million or a certain percentage of the aggregate
principal amount of the mortgage loan receivables of the
subsidiaries which are then sub-charged/sub-mortgaged to the
independent third party. The tenor for the facilities is one year
with normal market interest rate.

As at 29 February 2016, the available uncommitted loan
facilities after taking into consideration of the drawdown was
approximately $Nil. These outstanding loan balance of $151.8
million were secured by mortgage loan receivables for the
Group with a carrying value of $189.8 million.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA
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HE-—ZT—XRE-A-+hBIEE Kx&£E
B—&BUE - TS EARGEREBERER
mbE o Bh& PR %E A300,000,0007T 5k 7% & M B
RNEVE BRI RIE T BB = 7 2 FEWIR B
RFERACRBZETAD L ZEES - @
B2REAE—F  WH—MMHFRTE -

RZFB-—REF-_A-tTHhB  #AREERK
B ABRZEARERBENRTT - %E
R /3151,800,0007T 2 7 8 12 B 5k 4% #h DA BR
[H {8 /3 189,800,0007T < 7 & [H| & Wiz 15 45 17
SRR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the plan
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $25,000, or $30,000 after 1 June
2014. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

LOANS FROM THE ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The loans from the ultimate holding company are revolving,
unsecured, interest bearing at Prime Rate less 0.25% (currently
5%) per annum and repayable within one year.

DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

The debt securities are unsecured, denominated in HKD,
interest bearing at 6% per annum with interest coupon being
paid semi-annually and will be matured in between 2021 and
2023. All debt securities issued are measured at amortised cost.

20

21

22

EBERKER

E MR R E

AEBBESBRHERESAEEI AR S
BREBIRAFAERZE 2 EERERHIER
BT E([aEeFE ) ET ZRIKER - &
Beitglh—BERBYUSTEATEZ THEER
RIREHEl - RIFRTESE EEREEESR
AR EELBENEE BB A% 2 H#
o LA AU A25,0007T 330,000 (R
ZE—WNFEARA—H®E)BLER - AFE2H®

AN SR -

REERDEZER

BRERARZERBBER 2 BRER &
HEBEFIEH0.25% (A ATA5%) 2 FF K3t
B WAR—FREE -
ERTEEES

ZEBHEFR/ERT - UBTTEHE @ 6%
FHERFEAEBFFEFIN—RMES - B
R-B_—F —ZE__FR_ZE_=FHE
e A B RITEBE S HIREHKAFE -
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 REEHKEMRRERZAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(A) CURRENT TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED (A) REEHBMRREZEBAHIERE :
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION REPRESENTS:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hE
$ $
Provision for Hong Kong Profits REEHENESTEE
Tax for the year (note 8(a)) (FfzE8(@a)) 18,016,836 15,800,931
Provisional Profits Tax paid B TR TS (11,951,476) (6,888,865)
6,065,360 8,912,066
(B) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS RECOGNISED: (B) ERRBZELRERE :
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in REEHBRARERBEEHIREE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the AR D ARRERZZEEHIT ¢
movements during the year are as follows:
The related
depreciation Impairment
in excess of losses on
depreciation loans and
allowances advances
BB ERE BREBR Others Total
ZAERAITE Z R EEE Hith #st
$ $ $ $
Deferred tax arising from: EEHERE :
At 1 March 2014 R-Z—NFE=F—H 200,423 91,453 44,344 336,220
Credited/(charged) to profit or T AR/ (B
loss (note 8(a)) MER) (FI5E8(a)) 9,209 (48,597) 4,125 (35,263)
At 28 February 2015 RZZE—HF
—A=+NH 209,632 42,856 48,469 300,957
At 1 March 2015 R-ZE—HF=F—H 209,632 42,856 48,469 300,957
(Charged)/credited to profit or (FAB#HIER),FFA
loss (note 8(a)) Bz (@) (34,498) 87,391 (3,094) 49,799
At 29 February 2016 RZE—RF
—R=t+hH 175,134 130,247 45,375 350,756
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
MOVEMENT IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY

(A)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 55 R 2R B

ABTTEIR)

24 EXR - FEERKRE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

(A) #EZHBIZEH

KEIZ*AEE% H A B ‘Hﬁ%ﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁi
BRIHBERIANGREEREP K - $’A
Txflﬁé\iﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁéi%ﬂ}}iﬂiz

in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s FEEEMT
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company Y|
Share Share Other Accumulated
Note capital premium reserve losses Total
i3 B RIDEE Hitifk e E-Say i Bzt
$ $ $ $ $
At 1 March 2014 R-Z2-mF
=H—H 4,000,000 85,625,004 56,963,506 (16,412,581) 130,175,929
Changes in equity for “E-REYER
2015: 25 .
Total comprehensive income &2 E YA L5
for the year = = 2,243,815 2,243,815
Share issue under placing, ~ RIBEE &I
net of issuing expenses R (EMRE
59 24(c)(ii) 500,000 69,825,000 — — 70,325,000
Final dividend approved in 5t £ —{AFEHt
respect of the previous year T HAE Ik
and paid during the year {2 REIKA 24(b)ii —  (12,150,000) = — (12,150,000)
Interim dividend declared ~ RERE R KRS Z
and paid during the year RERR S 24(b)(i) — (10,800,000) = — (10,800,000)
At 28 February 2015and R-Z—HEF_RA
1 March 2015 Z+NBR=%
—-1¥=H—H 4,500,000 132,500,004 56,963,506 (14,168,766) 179,794,744
Changes in equity for 2016: = — )~ F 2 i
28
Total comprehensive income FEZ2E AL
for the year = = = 4,583,258 4,583,258
Share issue under placing,  RIEEREEZ1TM M
net of issuing expenses (BMBREITRX)  24(cii) 800,000 152,217,295 = — 153,017,295
Final dividend approved in ~ §t b —EFE#/E
respect of the previous year W RERE 2
and paid during the year RERRE 24(b)(ii) — (15,900,000) = — (15,900,000)
Interim dividend declared ~ RFAE R KK
and paid during the year ~ ZFERRR S 24(b)i) —  (13,780,000) = —  (13,780,000)
Bonus issue AR 31T 24(c)iii) 15,900,000  (15,900,000) - - —
At 29 February 2016 RZB-—X"EZR
—t+AhH 21,200,000 239,137,299 56,963,506 (9,585,508) 307,715,297
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT'D)
DIVIDENDS

(B)

(i)

(B)
Dividend paid and payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year:

LA TTEIR)

24 EX > mERKRE ()

i3S
(i) FARABRYREMSAARERRR
ZRBB

2016 2015
ZB-RF —T—AF
$ $
Interim dividend declared and paid 2 &k &k 2 & EAEE
of $0.65 cents per ordinary share &R EBR0.65M (==
(2015: HK$2.4 cents per ordinary —F 4 : G ERAL2.4
share) (note 1) Bl (BREET) 13,780,000 10,800,000
Final dividend proposed after R & B R 1& #Ek 2 R HA
the end of the reporting period % ST FAR0.657
of HK$0.65 cents per ordinary il (ZZ2—h%F: gkE
share (2015: HK$3.0 cents per BAR3.08L)  (FizE2)
ordinary share) (note 2) 13,780,000 13,500,000
Special dividend proposed after R4 KRB IR 2 £ 5
the end of the reporting period % B AR 3 R 0.4 3781
of HK$0.43 cents per ordinary T —0F &)
share (2015: Nil) 9,116,000 —

Note 1:  The interim dividend declared and paid for the
period ended 31 August 2015 of $13,780,000
(2015: $10,800,000) is calculated based
on 2,120,000,000 ordinary shares (2015:
450,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue as at 31
August 2015.

Note 2:  The final dividend proposed for the year
ended 29 February 2016 of $13,780,000
(2015: $13,500,000) is calculated based
on 2,120,000,000 ordinary shares (2015:
450,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue as at 29
February 2016.

Such special dividend will be satisfied by way of cash
or shareholders may elect to receive scrip dividend
wholly or partly in lieu of the cash dividend. The
scrip dividend will be satisfied by an allotment of
new shares of the Company to be credited as fully
paid.

The final dividend and special dividend proposed
after the end of the reporting period totaling
$22,896,000 (2015: $13,500,000) have not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA

1Bz —AaF N \A=1+—HIEHHEEE
ik MRS 2 P HEAR% E.13,780,0007T (==&
—A% :10,800,0007T) SEN=F—H
FNA=+—HE%172,120,000,0000%
TR (ZZ—HF : 450,000,0008% F
|AR) FHE -

W28 E—T—R"E-_A-+t B ILFERH
K 2 REAR% 213,780,000 (ZE—H
£ :13,500,0007T) RN —F
Z—AZ+NHE#%772,120,000,000/% &
BWAY (ZZ—FH% : 450,000,0000% & i@
&) &THE -

BRI RSB AR & I RRAEE
WEEE D R E#B AR B AR B RS
BB o ARRHECEFA - AN PARA
BB - LHMERUE -

RI{EHAR » 43£22,896,000T (—ZT—
FEF : 13,500,0007T) Z#IK < KRERZ B
MERIRERFERREAERAEEAE -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT'D)

B R ¥R AR Y R

ABTTEIR)

24 EX > mERKRE ()

(B) DIVIDENDS (cont’d) (B) RE (&)

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the iy MRNFARENRENZ EF—FERFE
Company attributable to the previous financial year, ERARRERRE ZKRE
approved and paid during the year:

2016 2015
ZB-RF —T—AF
$ $
Final dividend in respect of B F—BHREEABIR
the previous financial year, DERE KR AT 2 R ER
approved and paid during A% B A% AR 3. 01l
the following year, of $3.0 cents —T-hF: GREB
per ordinary share (2015: 2.7 fg2.740)
cents per ordinary share) 15,900,000 12,150,000
(C) SHARE CAPITAL (O ’=xE
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEEREBRITRA
2016 2015
5-5E %-1%
Nominal Nominal
value of value of
Par Number ordinary Number ordinary
value of shares shares of shares shares
i Bt#E  EBRAZEE BH#E  EBRAZEE
Note
i ) § §
Authorised: EE
At 29 February 2016/ RZZE-~EZA=tNB/
28 February 2015 “Z-RF-A-t/\A 0.01 100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000  100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERAR:
At 1 March 20152014 RoB-1%/-F-ME=F—H 0.01 400,000,000 4,000,000 400,000,000 4,000,000
Share issue under placing RERERTRN A 001 80,000,000 800,000 50,000,000 500,000
Bonus issue RET (i) 0.01 1,590,000,000 15,900,000 = =
At 29 February 2016/ R-F-~E-A=tNB/
28 February 2015 “Z-RF-A-t/NH 0.01 2,120,000,000 21,200,000 450,000,000 4,500,000

The holders of shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

BB ABRERTREEIR. 2K
B UAERARAEHLANEK
BOR—F - FAERMDEARARREZ
RBBEEDZFE RS -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT'D)

©
(i)

(iii)

(D)
(i)

SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d)

Issue of shares under placing

On 5 March 2014, the Company issued 50,000,000
shares with par value of $0.01 each, at a price of
$1.45 per share by way of a placing. Net proceeds
from the issue amounted to $70,325,000 (after
offsetting expenses directly attributable to the issue
of shares of $2,175,000), out of which $500,000
and $69,825,000 were recorded in share capital
and share premium respectively.

On 16 June 2015, the Company issued 80,000,000
shares with par value of $0.01 each, at a price of
$2.03 per share by way of a placing. Net proceeds
from the issue amounted to $153,017,295 (after
offsetting expenses directly attributable to the issue
of shares of $9,382,705), out of which $800,000
and $152,217,295 were recorded in share capital
and share premium respectively.

By an ordinary resolution passed at annual general
meeting on 31 July 2015, the issued share capital was
increased by a bonus issue by applying $15,900,000
charged to the share premium account as payment
in full for 1,590,000,000 shares at par of $0.01
each, on the basis of three new shares for every
one shares held on 18 August 2015. These shares
rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares in
all respects.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES:

Distributability of reserves

There is no section in the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and the Company’s memorandum
and article of association governing the distribution
of reserves. At 29 February 2016, the aggregate
amount of reserve available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $286,515,297
(2015: $175,294,744), being the net amount of
share premium, other reserve and accumulated
losses.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA

LA TTEIR)

24 EX > mERKRE ()

(@)
(ii)

(iii)

R (%)

RIETLEZTREG
R-ZZE—WNE=ZAHH ARQaAE
FEBEERFN  BBRRMK1.457T
Z {B#%%1750,000,0000% &% E (&
0.01tzMtn o ZBEITZ B IA
$ %8 /470,325,00070 ( B 0 & 2 1T
Bz BEER2,175,0000T) @ &
# -+ 500,0007T }69,825,0007T 2
D RIET AR A K B (7 5 (B o

R—ZE—RAFNA+H AR
AIEEBRREERN  HEREKM
2.037T 2 B #& % 1780,000,000/%
HFRMmEC.0ITL Z & LT
Z FT 1S 3 18 )% %8 /5153,017,295
T( EBRBETROCEEER
9,382,7057L ) + EH A+ 800,0007T
}%152,217,295T E & Bl & AR A&
MR & E -

RN —_E—RAFtA=+—HH
TZREBFRE LABA LR
RER  BBEITRAEITARS
IO - A AR = (B BRI
B 215,900,0007T FA i 1% E B &
f£1,590,000,0000% & A% E 1H0.01
TTZBD - FTRIBEZEEEBR =T
—RFENATN\BEHE —RERD
BRI GD - ZEROIE
FHEHRBERNDZE RFEF -

(D) REHEZMEREHN

(i)

R R E

AEHEARNEMAARZHABKE
BRARMEERMBITEREEB
DRZEH - M_ZTE—F_A
Z+NBE - ARREEKE A H
Ik s 4R %8 5286,515,297 (=
T — F 4 ¢ 175,294,7447T ) - B
IRinimfE - AtufEERRFTEEC
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)
(D) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES: (cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group was not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements, except for the capital, current
ratio and gearing ratio requirements attached to the
interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position with
the debt equity ratio, being the Group’s total
borrowings over its total equity, no more than
150%, and ensure there was adequate working
capital to service its debt obligations. As at 29
February 2016 the Group and the Company’s debt
equity ratio were 66.8% (2015: 63.7%) and 40.7 %
(2015: 41.5%) respectively.

24 EXR - RERERRE (&)
(D) fEfEZMERE/N(E)
(i) BRGZE

REFSHESQAFNE  ARAEIZK
104 (B R AT (B HE 0 R SOR A AR
TRR - ERBEEZE D KSR
EEBR  ARRANERXEE
R XRIRZ &7

(iii) BEXEE

AEBEREAZHEZRENRE
AEBBBELEEZRS  ETEB
T*Eﬁiﬂf&JKSPHMZF an 7€ 8 MA K&

BESEERAZRE  #EBREK
REVERIB R AR MEDTA AL
ENE - AREB B X BRI L
MZzBERBRE  FEEEMAN
EX - RBLXRERELXRRER
s ©

REBRBER N EHHERRBET
RO RER  LERERRERE
MTAIgEHE s RESEEKTFER
2 BERARRE R 2 TR RRE 2
MEGFE  WHARLERR . E
IEHEREBIELAE -

AEBRBEEEBMRAERER -

REE KEEHFTERREBE
REEAREE  aEERLR(AIA
EEBEEERNEERARE)D
FBiE150% ° Iﬁé{%ﬁﬁé’w )

TEEEH R-_F—-XR"F_-A
—thB- $’§l)§2$ TZQL@
R L 9 Il /566.8% —4h

F:63.7%)%40.7% Aﬁ ﬁi-
41.5%) o
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 Bl ERBREERAFE

VALUE

As the core business of the Group is engaged in secured AR AEEZZOERASET AR EEEKAR

financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and BES  BREATERRIRBERBER - kA

mortgage loans, the main risks associated with its business are HEEBEEZEIERARAEERBRREFTAZE

credit risk and the need to maintain a fairly liquid position. HEHEESRRNZEK

(A) CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT (A) FERRER
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event AR BRLET A ?*ﬁg)@ﬁ% Bt ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations BREEReMEEMAXZERER
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets iz} ﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ;ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁi%ﬁéz
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the FREE ° AEE 1R %ﬁﬁk REZBAER
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s HEWER - RS EERRBERE -
credit risk are primarily attributable to its loan receivables. Z'K SEE S EBR R EEE RZHE
In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group have BRR -

established policies and systems for the monitoring and
control of credit risk.

The Group has developed and adopted a systematic AEECHABERRA-ERRETR
approach in running its business in an efficient way, NEAR@SZ TARLERRE  BEMX
including the adoption of internal control procedures for R ERR/EMMmMERAZ AEEERT

risk management purposes.

The Group manages its credit risk on a conservative basis AREERFEEHEREGZEER
+0 9 S A R
by evaluating its loan portfolio in relation of quantitative ke EIHRRE - RTEEAEERR -

risk/return criteria.

In relation to the pawn loan business, the Group has RAEEREHMS ARBEXRAA
adopted internal control procedures including the HRECIEREFr - BIE AR A AT AL
identification and evaluation of ownership and obtaining RSB EAMEZ Z/EMAE - REELF
an accurate valuation of personal property. The Group R RNEE—BIEN T50%%E85%
usually grants loans with a loan-to-value ratio ranging ZEFREEEL RBRE - HERE
from 50% - 85%, depending on the type of collateral and BEREEL - R&REHEERE
the valuation is made at the point of granting the loan. FREERXGELEZRREERRR
The maximum exposure of the credit risk arising from fRE MBI Rz REREERZ
pawn loan business at the end of each reporting period BREE -

is the carrying amount of the pawn loan receivables as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB KAEEIN - B TYIR)

VALUE (CONT’D)

(A)

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

Different valuations are used for different types of
collaterals.

—  Gold prices quoted from The Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society

— Diamond prices quoted from latest Rapaport
Diamond Report

—  Watches quoted from either retail listed prices or
parallel import wholesale prices

—  Consumer electronic products quoted from updated
pricelists of second-hand consumer electronic
products

A customer is considered to have defaulted in repayment
of the pawn loan if they have not redeemed the collateral
or renewed the pawn loan by the end of the term of the
pawn loan. At the Group’s sole discretion, a grace period
of up to six weeks may be provided to customers after the
end of the loan period during which the Group may allow
the customers to renew the pawn loan and/or redeem the
collateral. The Group will take possession of the collateral
if the customer has not redeemed the collateral or renewed
the pawn loan by the end of the loan period or the grace
period provided. Repossessed assets are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(l) and the carrying amount of repossessed assets as at
29 February 2016 was $9,294,034 (2015: $8,859,436).
The Group will proceed to dispose the collateral within a
reasonable time after possession.

BHRREERAFEGE)

(A) FERBRER(H)

TR 2 WA mE AT REEX -

— SREEZEMHIESER

— BEOBERABRIEBELER

— ZTEERBRAFTEORLBERM
Wz FEER

— C—FHEETEMZIENEBRERAM
HHEETEMBER

REEERARERA - MEF I EE
AR EEREER 2B FRIH
RAEBHEREEREER - AEET2
ERBrRERERHBEREATFR
HEENFEEHZERY - RNEHEEMH
N AEBAAHEFEEREERR
RELEER REZRHRESIREHEZE
PR HA#E SR AT - W B 5 I 4 BE [0 3K 48 & 3R
EEREEN  ASERBEFEER -
&g B E EAR M FE2()FTE 2 5T BUR
AR R-ZT—RNF-_A-1+NHB &K
g Bl & 7 v BRI (E 459,294,0347T( =&
— A4 :8,859,4367T) c NEEBNE
HEBDEAEERA LSRR
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 Bl RRBEERAFE(E)
VALUE (CONT’'D)

(A) CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d) (A) CSERKREE(E)

In relation to the mortgage loan business, the Group
has also adopted internal control procedures for the
identification and evaluation of the legal ownership
and accurate valuation of property. As a matter of risk
management, the Group usually grants loans with a loan-
to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the value in the
valuation report of the property, which is generally lower
than bank’s loan-to-value ratio for mortgages which
can be as high as 70%. In a few cases if the customers
request loans with the loan-to-value ratio of over 70%,
approval from the chief executive officer is required.
For the valuation of the property, the Group will make
reference to a third party valuer and/or the internet
valuation services provided by banks in Hong Kong. The
Group holds collateral against loan receivables in the
form of mortgages over properties located in Hong Kong.
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
mortgage loan receivables is significantly mitigated by the
property held as collateral, with reference to the estimated
market value of the property at the grant date. The Group
may take possession of assets held as collateral through
court proceeding or voluntary delivery of possession by
the borrowers. It disposes the property by auction once
receiving the possession.

Management has overall responsibility for the Group's
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the Group’s
loan portfolio. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of loans and receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, management considers that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loan receivables are
set out in note 13.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

VALUE (CONT’'D)
(A) CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

(B)

The Group’s policy requires the reviews of individual
financial assets that are above materiality thresholds
on semi-annual basis. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an
evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting
period on a case by-case basis, and are applied to all
individually significant accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts
for that individual account. As at 29 February 2016, no
individually impairment allowance was made (2015: Nil)
in respect of overdue and impaired mortgage loans of
$5,834,792 as management assessed that these loans can
be fully recovered after taking into account the fair values
of the collateral at prevailing market prices.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided
for (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are not
assessed individually; and (ii) losses incurred but not
yet identified, by using the historical loss experience,
experienced judgment and statistical techniques to
provide.

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in interest rate.

Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity analysis.
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risk or the currencies as the financial assets and
liabilities are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars
in which it manages and measures the risk throughout
for relevant period.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
mortgage loan receivables, bank loans and overdrafts
and loans from the ultimate holding company. Mortgage
loan receivables, unsecured loan receivables, certain bank
loans and overdrafts, other loans, and loans from the
ultimate holding company issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

B 55 R 2R B
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 Bl RRBEERAFE(E)
VALUE (CONT’'D)

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

(B)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate profile

The Group's interest rate positions arise from
lending activities. Interest rate risk primarily results
from the timing differences in the repricing of
interest-bearing assets, liabilities and commitments.
It also relates to positions from non-interest bearing
liabilities including shareholders’ funds and current
accounts, as well as from loans and liabilities.

Certain of the Group’s loan receivables (mainly the
pawn loans), debt securities issued and bank loans
and overdrafts are fixed rate. Although subject to
interest rate risk, they are not remeasured in the
financial statements in response to changes in
interest rates and therefore changes in interest rate
risk variables would not affect reported profit or loss
in the short term.

Sensitivity analysis

At 29 February 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax
and retained profits by approximately $5,132,115
(2015: $3,510,631).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change on the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2015.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA
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B 55 R 2R B

ABTTEIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 Bl ERBEERAFE(E)
VALUE (CONT’D)

©

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with loan/borrowing
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Q)

RBESEABRER
AEEZBRBERERR] é)ﬁﬁ
EARREETER BER L/U':E
f%ﬁ?ﬁhi%ﬁzfﬁifuﬁﬁM&IEI%&
CREBIRARAFESREE  UERM

AEBZEHMEPRDESTE -

TRFLAKERBEHRZDITHR
MARSRE(BRESONERK(INE
FRI)BREBERSHRABITZMEGFEZF
BIRfEZEMABE I RBRA QR - A
EASEABEAMFTALKZFEN

2016
ZB-RF

Total More than  More than

contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but

undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
Carrying  cashflow on demand 2 years 5years  More than
amount BITARER  MERN 150 E 2N 5 years
REE ReREEH RER  BIME  BORSE SENE
$ $ $ $ $ $
Accruals and other payables it EARHMEMFE 6,585,458  6,585458 6,585,458 = = =
Bank loans and overdrafts BTERRER 76,390,858 77,137,138 77,137,138 - - -
Obligations under finance leases & & &&iE 719,024 761,280 228,384 228,384 304,512 =

Loans from the ultimate holding Z&RRAFZEH
company 92,500,000 92,682,992 92,682,992 — — —
Debt securities issued ERTERES 124,454,079 169,665,000 7,500,000 7,500,000 22,500,000 132,165,000
Other loans A& 151,840,000 153,756,669 153,756,669 - - =
452,489,419 500,588,537 337,890,641 7,728,384 22,804,512 132,165,000
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

26

VALUE (CONT’D)

BHEREERAFEE)

(C) LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d) () REBELEKBREE(E)
2015
i
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
Carrying cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than
amount BETHIRHER  BMER EDNS 2ENE 5 years
FEE Benz£s RER  BORE EIRSE SE £
$ $ $ $ $ $
Accruals and other payables st B A REENTIE 5870839  5870,839 5,870,839 = = =
Bank loans and overdrafts RITEFREX 125,522,021 125,936,839 125,936,839 = = =
Obligations under finance leases ~ B E&#E 918,653 989,664 228,384 228,384 532,896 =
Loans from the ultimate holding ~ &&XZRARZEH
company 86,900,000 87,163,356 87,163,356 - = —
Debt securities issued BETEEES 74,646,273 105,051,781 4,500,000 4,500,000 13,500,000 82,551,781
293,857,786 325,012,479 223,699,418 4,728,384 14,032,896 82,551,781
(D) FAIR VALUE (D) A¥E
Management consider that the carrying amounts of BEERA RASEMBRENLE
the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded HAAS R eRmEERSRMBEZE
at amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements HEREAFEES -
approximate their fair value.
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26 REHEERIE
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS REHERE
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non- REBRBEYETAIRBELEHE 2 BRAKRK
cancellable operating leases of properties are payable as follows: xEHESEEOT :
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hEF
$ $
Within one year 15K 7,530,000 10,348,491
After one year but within five years 1 &BE5FR 11,730,540 9,724,840
19,260,540 20,073,331

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5
years. Lease payments are usually increased at the end of the
lease term to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

@ 0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEMREEEERAE AT
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXBEIRS

During the year, transactions with the following parties are RER BTANZTHZREBEREBER
considered to be related party transactions: X5
Name of party Relationship with the Group
BMESME BB BAREEZREE
Mr. Chan Chart Man Director and one of the controlling equity
BREE S owners of the Company
RAREEREREREGAZ —
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward Director, one of the controlling equity owners
BREAZ e of the Company and son of Mr. Chan Chart Man
AABEERERESHEEAZ - KREXEEZ
2F
Ms. Chan Ying Yu Director, one of the controlling equity owners
PR iy 22 + of the Company and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man
RABEERERESEEAZ - RREXELEZ
Z5
Ms. Chan Mei Fong Director, one of the controlling equity owners
BREF 2+ of the Company and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man
RABEERIERESEEAZ —RREXEEZ
Z5
Ms. Chan Nga Yu One of the controlling equity owners of the Company
PR M 2+ and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man

ARBEBRESHAALZL - MREXKEZ LR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx BEIEREIN » LAETTIIR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EABESRS (&)

(CONT'D)

Name of party Relationship with the Group

BEHHEEB BE AR £ B 2 BA R

Ms. Chan Kit Yu One of the controlling equity owners of the Company
FROZI 22+ and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man

Ms. Mui Hang Sin
Azt

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
PR BRI o A

Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Ltd. (“Kwan Chart Holding")
EREEERAR(ERER])

Kwan Chart Estate Company Ltd. (“Kwan Chart Estate”)
EXRBXERAR(EXREE])

Kwan Lik Holding Limited

ARREBESEEAZ - MREXEEZLSR

One of the controlling equity owners of the Company
and spouse of Mr. Chan Chart Man
RRNBERERERAZ — RREEE 2B

Son of Mr. Chan Chart Man
R X EEZRT

Controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man
B [BR 3R S 5 A 2 |

Controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man
FR PR 28 3 e A 1

Immediate holding company and jointly controlled by
Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong,

Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu and
Ms. Mui Hang Sin, also the controlling equity
owners of the Company.

BEEERAR - WHREXEE  BREERTE
PREEH L+ « BREF X+ - BRI L L -

PRZB AT RS IZ T HRES - A
KRB ZEREREBA ©

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions:

(A) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION

BRAMBHRREMBEMARE 2R P MAERIN
AEEDAYNTERNBESRS :

(A) FEEEAEHMH

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—hF

$ $

Salary and other emoluments Fre N H At Er B 5,049,707 5,267,086

Discretionary bonuses BHETEAL 4,646,082 2,050,000
Contributions to Mandatory SRHIEATES K

Provident Fund 95,500 117,092

9,791,289 7,434,178

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBEEMHEEERRAR QA
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EABEIXR S (E)
(CONT'D)

(B) TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER RELATED PARTIES (B) HEHMBELRS
During the year, the Group entered into transactions with RER REEREBSEKBESE
related parties in the ordinary course of its business as FERF L 2RS0T
follows:
2016 2015
—B-AF —T-AF
$ $
Rental expense paid to XNFUATERZEERX
— Kwan Chart Holding — EREE 960,000 830,667
— Kwan Chart Estate — BREHE 576,000 547,742
— Mr. Chan Chart Man — REX ek 960,000 830,667
The directors consider that all related party transactions EERE REAZCHBEBEIRSTY
during the year were conducted on normal commercial B—REXEGINRAEBBRER —RE
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s TEBIZPHETT o
business.
(C) PERSONAL GUARANTEE PROVIDED TO LANDLORD IN (O BAEEVFzHEOFFTREZMB/A
RESPECT OF THE GROUP’S RENTAL OF PREMISE ER
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—AhF
$ $
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward FBRERSR JE £ 88,000 1,663,500
The rental guarantee is provided to the landlord in respect ARER—MAZRERERNARER
AN =S (e AN g2
of a Group’s pawnshop lease contract. The guarantee RS ER - BROEMS K& RE
matures at the end of the related contract. I -

28 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, AMOUNTS 28 RHEBARZRE - El—RBHE

DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY AND LOANS TO DA 2 FRIE K [ — E i E QR R
A SUBSIDIARY ZEX
The Company
AR
2016 2015
—B-KE —E-0F
$ $
Unlisted shares, at cost R ETRMD - KA 57,063,506 57,063,506
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28 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, AMOUNTS
DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY AND LOANS TO
A SUBSIDIARY (CONT'D)
At 29 February 2016, the Company has direct or indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private
companies, particulars of which are set out below:

28 RBARZRE - B —EHE

DR 2 RBRE— E B E R
2B (&)

R-B—AF-A-+1A - AR TIIH
BAR(2HHALARR) BEEERMER
% HERIIMT

Place and date of

Attributable

Issued and fully

incorporation/ paid up capital/ equity interest
establishment registered capital [N Principal
Name of company SRR, R CRITREZELX, Direct Indirect  activities
DEER RBH HAfMEx  HE LiE:3 TEXK
Oi Wah Holding Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") 2,000 ordinary shares 100% = Investment holding
31 May 2012 with no par value
0i Wah Holding Limited EBRREHE((REE 2,000/ EEE 100% = REER
wES]) TamR
“T——F
AA=+—H
Oi Wah Pawnshop Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary — 100% Pawn broking
Credit Limited 22 March 2000 shares and money
lending
BEMZERARAR BE 10,000,000 — 100% HELRERES
—ZTTH EEk
=AZ+ZH
Hing Wah Pawnshop Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Pawn broking
Credit Limited 12 April 2012 and money
lending
HERZEERRAR BE 1RERK — 100% HERREER
“E-_FWA+_H
Wai Wah Pawnshop Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Pawn broking
Credit Limited 12 April 2012 and money
lending
BEREEERRAF BB 1RERK — 100% HE RHEES
“E-_FWA+_H
Oi Wah Property Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Money lending
Credit Limited 20 February 2014
BENEEERRAA i3 1RERKR — 100% HEXS
—2-ME_R-+H
Oi Wah Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Financing
4 April 2014
BELEARAF Hi IS AR — 100% RMEBEK
“Z-MEMANA
Oi Wah Credit Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Inactive
29 January 2015
BEEEEARATF & B ER - 100%  mzey
“E-AI¥-AZtHA

@ 0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEMEEERRAR AT
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ABTTEIR)

28 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, AMOUNTS 28 HRHIEBATZHRE - EW—RBKHE

29

DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY AND LOANS TO
A SUBSIDIARY (CONT'D)

DAz FRIE K 0] — FE B m] 4R AR
ZEM (&)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
incorporation/ paid up capital/ equity interest
establishment registered capital b RA R Principal
Name of company ML Rt B BERTRHZELX,/ Direct Indirect activities
DEER REH dAfMEx  HE SiE:3 FEXK
Oi Wah Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Inactive
1 April 2015
BE IR AR TELy
“Z-hFMA-A
Oi Wah Mortgage Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Inactive
1 April 2015
BE ThCE @R TEL
—Z-hFMA—A
Oi Wah Pawnshop Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares — 100% Pawn broking
15 February 2016
BR 1RE AR HEEK
“E-A¥-At+AH

Amounts due from a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Loans to a subsidiary are revolving, unsecured, interest bearing
at Prime Rate plus 0.75% (currently 6%) per annum and
repayable on demand.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND
UNCERTAINTY

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
accounting policy 2(k). Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of the current observable data. Management
reviews the methodology and assumptions used in estimating
impairment losses regularly to reduce any difference between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

29

BN —RMB AR RIBREERR 28 RIK

A—EMNERARRKCERRERRZBERE

B REREENEN.75% (B RI/6%) 2F
MEEE - WAREREER -

A EERRRFTHPEER

ERET
ExdagEfirsy LGRS FERERS
B ARERESFETANBETERESER

BEZEBRRELHE - REZEBEZERS
AtEER2(k)FI - BERBELRER B B A B
RYBELAE - BEEEE B AR ERS
BARRAZITERRR - LWL EBREFRE
BEECRZEIMER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx A #EHEIN - LLEITIIR)

30 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30 R=ZZE—AFZ-AZ+NBQFE

POSITION AS AT 29 FEBRUARY 2016 H B # AR R &
Note 2016 2015
B E —E—XRE —E—hF
$ $
Non-current assets ERBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H A FE WA 5,770,220 5,097,488
Investment in subsidiary R B AR 2 KE 57,063,506 57,063,506
62,833,726 62,160,994
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries U A Al 2 5B 44,639,927 18,709,963
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H A FE WA 5,862,599 3,380,035
Loans to subsidiaries mKTE R RIREZER 321,240,000 171,240,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBEE2EEY 121,211 73,768
371,863,737 193,403,766
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B F S HLA BB A 5O 1,232,562 659,006
Bank loan SRITE R 786,330 —
Current taxation BIEATR IR 509,195 464,737
2,528,087 1,123,743
Net current assets REEEFE 369,335,650 192,280,023
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBES 432,169,376 254,441,017
Non-current liability *nBEME
Debt securities issued BEETEBES 124,454,079 74,646,273
NET ASSETS EEFHE 307,715,297 179,794,744
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR #E 24
Capital & 2% 21,200,000 4,500,000
Reserves (] 286,515,297 175,294,744
TOTAL EQUITY EREHE 307,715,297 179,794,744

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 25 May 2016

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BRRE(Z 5t &)

Director %

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & #5833 &b -

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 29 February 2016, the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company is Kwan Lik Holding
Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 29 February 2016 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

B R ¥R AR Y R

ABTTEIR)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012- —&F——FFE—
2014 Cycle FEoE
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure BAGTERF 1R E
initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, &/
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation ER#E =
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

BAUBRE
il zs

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

BB BREENFT

ERRBIER A -
BRFISIIER] BB A EA T

EREISKEFE

oS @ LA

31 EERBRERA
RZE—RF_AZ ‘HLEI EERA AR
RIZEERBERERAFRNABR XA ST
fift 5 37 Z Kwan Lik Holding Limited ° 1t & 52
WEREERARER 2 MIEHRE -
32 EEMEERERZIERT ~ HFTE
AIRZEB2BERE
BHEUHFUBHRRTIELD  EESMAE
EREGRARBE_ZE-—R"F_A=-+hBI
FEAMBERRZENBRERE M2 ZIEE
R MERETER| - B At EASEHH 2 £R)
TR e
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTHEHR 2%
Rz EstBENR
—FEREZ 1 January 2016
—E—RF—-HA—H
IEET R B E] 1 January 2016
—E—RF-HA—H
Bl 1 January 2016
—E—R"F—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—N\F—H—H

1 January 2018
—FE-NF—H—H

LR B3R IE A I S RT TR HIE & R B R HIR
RELZTE - 2581 - ERREMAULEE
AR AAFRES G E M B RRENEATE -
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33 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 33 KEHREE

Renewal of revolving loan facilities from $300 million to HE-ERYUR=STRE2RRERMAR
$400 million from an independent third party 300,000,000T £ #3400,000,000T

On 28 April 2016, two subsidiaries of the Company renewed RZF—AFMAZ+/\R - ARFMEHE
uncommitted secured revolving loan facilities from an RRERE - BBUL=NME 2 HEAHFE
independent third party. The limit of the facilities increases RBIREHBE - BERTH300,000,0007T
from $300 million to $400 million, but is limited to certain $£2400,000,0007T  HfE AR A Bl 3% 55 W e I
percentage of the aggregate principal amount of the mortgage BRRARIM,RRTELEZT 2 BRI
loan receivables of those two subsidiaries of the Company, BERERASHBELETASLRR - @A
which are then sub-charged/sub-mortgaged to the independent ZBREB—F  WIER—MRMIBFRTE -

third party. The tenor of the facilities is one year with normal
market interest rate.

@ 0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEMREEEERAE AT
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